
2424 
DPFG Management & Consulting, LLC 

 
 
 
 
 

AVALON GROVES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT 

 
 

Agenda Package 
 
 

Regular Meeting 
 

 
 

Date & Time: 
Monday 

August 27, 2018 
11:30 a.m. 

 
 

Location: 
Cagan Crossing 

Community Library 
16729 Cagan Oaks 
Clermont, Florida 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Note:   The Advanced Meeting Package is a working document and thus all  materials 
are considered DRAFTS prior to presentation and Board acceptance, approval or 

adoption. 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 Avalon Groves 
Community Development District 

DPFG Management & Consulting, LLC 
[X] 1060 Maitland Center Commons, Suite 340 [ ] 15310 Amberly Drive, Suite 175 

Maitland, Florida 32751 
321-263-0134 

T ampa, Florida 33647 
813-374-9105 

 
 
 
August 17, 2018 

 
 
Board of Supervisors 
Avalon Groves Community 
Development District 

 
Dear Board Members: 

 
The R e g u l a r Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Avalon Groves Community 
Development District is scheduled for Monday, August 27, 2018 at 11:30 a.m. at the Cagan 
Crossing Community Library, 16729 Cagan Oaks, Clermont, Florida. 

 
The advanced copy of the agenda for the meeting is attached along with associated documentation for 
your review and consideration.  Any additional support material will be distributed at the meeting. 

 
The balance of the agenda is routine in nature.  Staff will present their reports at the meeting.  If you have 
any questions, please contact me.  I look forward to seeing you there. 

 
Sincerely, 

 

 

Patricia Comings-Thibault 
Patricia Comings-Thibault 
District Manager 

 
cc: Attorney 

Engineer 
District Records 

 



Page 1 of 2 
 

District: AVALON GROVES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
Date of Meeting: Monday, August 27, 2018 
Time: 11:30 a.m. 
Location: Cagan Crossing Community Library 
 16729 Cagan Oaks 
 Clermont, FL  
 Dial-in Number: 712-775-7031  
 Guest Access Code:  109-516-380 

 
Agenda 

I. Roll Call 
 
II. Audience Comments 
 
III. Administrative Matters 
 A. Approval of Minutes of May 24, 2018 Meeting  Exhibit 1 
  
 B.  Acceptance of the Unaudited July, 2018 Financials  Exhibit 2 
  
 C.   Consideration of Resolution 2018-06, Designating Dates, Exhibit 3  
        Times & Location for Meetings  
 
 D.  Consideration of Resolution 2018-07 Amending Resolution 2018-05  Exhibit 4 
  Resetting the Date of the Public Hearing for FY 2018-2019 Budget 
    
IV. Business Items 
 

A. Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Budget Public Hearing  
 Open the Public Hearing 

 
 Presentation of the FY 2018-2019 Budget  Exhibit 5 

 
 Public Comments  

 
 Close the Public Hearing  

 
B. Consideration of Resolution 2018-08 Adopting  Exhibit 6 

the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Budget & Funding Agreement  
       

C. Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Assessment Public Hearing 
 Open the Public Hearing 

 
 Public Comments & Testimony 

 
 Close the Public Hearing  

 
D. Consideration of Resolution 2018-09 Providing for the Collection & Exhibit 7 

Enforcement of Special Assessments for Fiscal Year 2018-2019  
 



AVALON GROVES CDD AGENDA August 27, 2018 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
IV. Business Items (continued) 
 
 E. Consideration of Randy Suggs Change Order #1 – $40,760.50. Total              Exhibit 8 
  Contract Price Incorporating Change Order - $237,126.80 
 
V. Consent Agenda  

A. Ratification of Proposal for Hog Removal  Exhibit 9 
 Humane Animal Removal Team  $500 Set Up $85/per Hog 
 

B. Ratification of Heidt Design Executed Proposal Exhibit 10 
  CDD Landscape Maintenance Map Not to Exceed $5,000 
  Draft Maintenance Map 

 
  C. Ratification of Yellowstone Executed Proposal – Month to Month Exhibit 11 

 Mowing of Bahia Along Serona Boulevard - $3,000 Monthly 
 
  D. Ratification of Termination of US Lawns Exhibit 12 
 
  E. Ratification of  BioTech Collector Road Monitoring & Maintenance Exhibit 13
  Contract & Presentation of  Monitoring Report 
 
  F. Ratification of BioTech Serenoa Phase 1A Monitoring & Maintenance Exhibit 14 
   Contract & Presentation of Monitoring Report 

 
 
 VI. Staff Reports 
 A. Manager 
  
 B. Attorney  
  
 C. Engineer   
 
VII. Supervisors Requests 
 
VIII. Adjournment 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 1 



INUTES OF MEETING 1 
AVALON GROVES 2 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 3 
 4 
 The Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Avalon Groves Community 5 
Development District was held on Thursday, May 24, 2018 at 11:30 a.m. at the Cagan Crossing 6 
Community Library, 16729 Cagan Oaks, Clermont, Florida 33558.  7 
  8 
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS – Roll Call 9 

Ms. Comings-Thibault called the meeting to order.    10 

Present and constituting a quorum were:  11 

Greg Meath    Board Supervisor, Chairman 12 
Brad Walker    Board Supervisor, Vice Chairman  13 
Candice Smith     Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary  14 
Troy Simpson    Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary 15 

Also present were: 16 

Patricia Coming-Thibault  District Manager 17 
Jere Earlywine    District Counsel  18 
Victor Barbosa    District Engineer (via phone) 19 
 Jon Seifel     Kolter    20 
  21 

 22 
The following is a summary of the discussions and actions taken at the May 24, 2018 Avalon Groves 23 
CDD Board of Supervisors meeting. 24 
  25 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS – Audience Comments 26 

 Moving on to the Second Order of Business, Ms. Comings-Thibault opened the floor for 27 
questions and comments from the audience on agenda items. There being none, next item followed. 28 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS – Administrative Matters  29 

Moving on to the Third Order of Business, Ms. Comings-Thibault opened the floor to discuss 30 
administrative matters, Exhibit 1 & 2: 31 

A. Exhibit 1: Approval of the Minutes from the April 26, 2018 Meeting 32 

On a MOTION by Mr. Meath, SECONDED by Mr. Simpson, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 33 
approved the April 26, 2018 meeting minutes for the Avalon Groves Community Development District. 34 

B. Exhibit 2: Acceptance of the Unaudited April 2018 Financials 35 

On a MOTION by Mr. Meath, SECONDED by Mr. Simpson, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 36 
accepted the April 2018 unaudited financials for the Avalon Groves Community Development District. 37 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Business Items  38 

Moving on to the Fourth Order of Business, Ms. Comings-Thibault opened the floor to discuss 39 
business matters, Exhibit 3-8: 40 

A. Exhibit 3: Ratification of Jon Hall Change Order # 3 - ($25,864.80) – Total Contract Price 41 
Incorporating Change Order - $2,792,419.85 42 



Avalon Groves CDD         May 24, 2018 
Regular Meeting         Page 2 of 3 
 

On a MOTION by Ms. Smith, SECONDED by Mr. Walker, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board ratified 43 
the Jon Hall Change Order # 3 - ($25,864.80) – Total Contract Price Incorporating Change Order - 44 
$2,792,419.85 for the Avalon Groves Community Development District. 45 

B. Exhibit 4: Ratification of Jon Hall Contract – Turn Lanes - $56,733.60 46 

On a MOTION by Mr. Simpson, SECONDED by Ms. Smith, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 47 
ratified the Jon Hall Contract – Turn Lanes - $56,733.60 for the Avalon Groves Community 48 
Development District. 49 

C. Exhibit 5: Presentation of Lake County Supervisor of Elections Registered Voter Count – 36. 50 
(Working with Supervisor of Elections) 51 

D. Exhibit 6: Consideration of Resolution 2018-05, Approving the FY 2018/2019 Proposed 52 
Budget and Setting a Public Hearing 53 

On a MOTION by Mr. Meath, SECONDED by Mr. Walker, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 54 
adopted Resolution 2018-05, Approving the FY 2018/2019 Proposed Budget and Setting a Public 55 
Hearing to be held on August 23, 2018 for the Avalon Groves Community Development District. 56 

E. Exhibit 7: Discussion & Consideration of Randy Suggs Agreement for Landscape 57 
Maintenance Services 58 

The discussion is tabled until the next meeting. 59 

F. Exhibit 8: Discussion & Consideration of Graybar Financial Services Proposal for 60 
Streetlights. (Awaiting Solar Light Proposal) 61 

G. Ratification of Jon Hall Change Order # 6 – deduct ($5,360.20) – $3,198,005.82 62 

On a MOTION by Ms. Smith, SECONDED by Mr. Meath, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board ratified 63 
the Jon Hall Change Order # 6 – deduct ($5,360.20) – $3,198,005.82 for the Avalon Groves 64 
Community Development District. 65 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Staff Reports  66 

Moving on to the Fifth Order of Business, Ms. Comings-Thibault opened the floor to discuss the 67 
reports from the district manager, the attorney, and the engineer. There being none, next item followed. 68 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Supervisors Requests  69 

Moving on to the Sixth Order of Business, Ms. Comings-Thibault opened the floor for supervisor 70 
requests. There being none, next item followed. 71 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Adjournment  72 

Moving on to the Seventh Order of Business, Ms. Comings-Thibault asked for final questions, 73 
comments, or corrections. There being none, Ms. Smith called for a motion to adjourn the meeting. 74 
MOTION PASSES 3-0. 75 

On a MOTION by Ms. Smith, SECONDED by Mr. Walker, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 76 
adjourned the meeting for the Avalon Groves Community Development District. 77 

 78 
*Each person who decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter 79 
considered at the meeting is advised that person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the 80 
proceedings is made, including the testimony and evidence upon which such appeal is to be based. 81 



Avalon Groves CDD         May 24, 2018 
Regular Meeting         Page 3 of 3 
 
 82 
Meeting minutes were approved at a meeting by vote of the Board of Supervisors at a publicly noticed 83 
meeting held on ________________________. 84 
 85 
             86 
Signature      Signature 87 
 88 
             89 
Printed Name      Printed Name 90 
Title: □ Secretary □ Assistant Secretary  Title: □ Chairman □ Vice Chairman  91 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 2 



Avalon Groves
Community Development District

Summary Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

Period Ending
July 31, 2018



 

 
 GENERAL

FUND 2017 (AA1) 2017A-1 (AA2) 2017A-2 (AA2) CIP (AA1) CIP A-1 (AA2) CIP A-2 (AA2) TOTAL
ASSETS:  

 CASH 45,496$                   -$                  -$                     -$                      -$                    -$                     -$                      45,496$                 
 INVESTMENTS:
 REVENUE FUND -                           83,012              81,532                 9,522                    -                      -                       -                        174,066                 
 CAP INTEREST -                           1,087                3,407                   8,637                    -                      -                       -                        13,131                   
 DS RESERVE -                           171,232            520,535               265,386                -                      -                       -                        957,153                 
 COST OF ISSUANCE -                           4,994                11,711                 2,107                    -                      -                       -                        18,812                   
 PREPAYMENT ACCOUNT -                           -                    -                       796,652                -                      -                       -                        796,652                 
 ACQ. & CONST. 2017 (AA1) -                           -                    -                       -                        456,177              -                       -                        456,177                 
 ACQ. & CONST. 2017A-1 (AA2) -                           -                    -                       -                        -                      59                        -                        59                           
 ACQ. & CONST. 2017A-2 (AA2) -                           -                    -                       -                        -                      -                       700,691                700,691                 
 PREPAID ITEMS 6,751                       -                    -                       -                        -                      -                       -                        6,751                      
 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE -                           -                        -                       -                        -                      236,821               -                        -                         
 DEPOSITS 453                          -                        -                         -                          -                         -                         -                          453

TOTAL ASSETS 52,700$                   260,325$          617,185$             1,082,304$          456,177$            236,880$             700,691$              3,169,441$            

LIABILITIES:

 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE -$                         -$                  -$                     -$                      95,943$              447,724$             104,169$              647,836$               
 RETAINAGE PAYABLE -                           -                    -                       -                        -                      -                       91,745                  91,745                   

 
FUND BALANCE:

 NONSPENDABLE:
 PREPAID AND DEPOSITS 453                          -                    -                       -                        -                      -                       -                        453                         

 ASSIGNED:
    OPERATING RESERVES -                           -                    -                       -                        -                      -                       -                        -                         
    RESERVES - ROADWAYS -                           -                    -                       -                        -                      -                       -                        -                         
 UNASSIGNED: 52,247                     260,325            617,185               1,082,304             360,234              (210,844)             504,777                2,429,407              

TOTAL  LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCE 52,700$                   260,325$          617,185$             1,082,304$          456,177$            236,880$             700,691$              3,169,441$            

Avalon Groves Community Development District
Balance Sheet

Unaudited
July 31, 2018

Page 2 of 13



Statement of Revenue, Expenditures And Change In Fund Balance

FY2017 VARIANCE
ADOPTED BUDGET ACTUAL FAVORABLE
BUDGET YEAR-TO-DATE YEAR-TO-DATE (UNFAVORABLE)

REVENUES
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS (LANDOWNER OFF-ROLL) 300,474$            250,395                   128,877$                (121,518)$                       
DEVELOPER FUNDING -                          -                               39,046                    39,046                            

TOTAL REVENUES 300,474              250,395                   167,923                  (82,472)                           

EXPENDITURES
GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE

DISTRICT MANAGEMENT SERVICES 8,000                  6,667                       -                              6,667                              
DISTRICT ACCOUNTING SERVICES 24,000                20,000                     14,000                    6,000                              
BANK FEES                                               150                     125                          -                              125                                 
AUDITING 3,500                  2,917                       2,500                      417                                 
REGULATORY & PERMIT FEES                                    175                     175                          175                         -                                      
LEGAL ADVERTISEMENTS                                  750                     625                          1,909                      (1,284)                             
ENGINEERING SERVICES                           10,000                8,333                       1,719                      6,614                              
LEGAL SERVICES                                   16,000                13,333                     35,310                    (21,977)                           
TECHNOLOGY & WEBSITE ADMIN. 960                     800                          900                         (100)                                
AD-VALOREM TAXES -                          -                               3,099                      (3,099)                             
MISCELLANEOUS (appraisal, etc.) 500                     417                          359                         58                                   

TOTAL GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE 64,035                53,392                     59,971                    (6,579)                             

INSURANCE
INSURANCE                        5,851                  5,851                       5,300                      551                                 

TOTAL INSURANCE 5,851                  5,851                       5,300                      551                                 

DEBT SERVICE ADMIN.
DISCLOSURE REPORT 5,000                  5,000                       5,000                      -                                      
ARBITRAGE REBATE 700                     -                               -                              -                                      
TRUSTEE FEES 3,800                  3,800                       10,500                    (6,700)                             

TOTAL DEBT ADMINISTRATION              9,500                  8,800                       15,500                    (6,700)                             

UTILITIES
  UTILITIES-ELECTRICITY 2,500                  2,083                       -                              2,083                              
  STREETLIGHTS 62,454                52,045                     -                              52,045                            
  UTILITY CONTINGENCY 5,000                  4,167                       -                              4,167                              
TOTAL UTILITIES 69,954                58,295                     -                              58,295                            

PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT 
LAKE & POND MAINTENANCE 20,400                17,000                     4,815                      12,185                            
LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE 95,734                79,778                     15,960                    63,818                            
LANDSCAPE - MISC. 5,000                  4,167                       -                              4,167                              
WETLAND MITIGATION & MAINTENANCE 14,000                11,667                     5,600                      6,067                              
FIELD MANAGEMENT 6,000                  5,000                       -                              5,000                              
FIELD CONTINGENCY 5,000                  4,167                       -                              4,167                              
HARDSCAPE REPAIRS & MAINT. 5,000                  4,167                       -                              4,167                              

TOTAL PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT EXPENDITURES     151,134              125,945                   26,375                    99,570                            

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 300,474              252,283                   107,146                  145,137                          

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES -                          (1,888)                      60,777                    62,665                            

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING -                          -                               -                              -                                      

FUND BALANCE - ENDING -$                        (1,888)$                    60,777$                  62,665$                          

For The Period Ending July 31, 2018

Avalon Groves Community Development District

Page 3 of 13



FY2018 VARIANCE
 ADOPTED BUDGET ACTUAL FAVORABLE

BUDGET YEAR-TO-DATE YEAR-TO-DATE (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUE

SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS - ON/OFF ROLL 185,153$               111,092               82,583$                (28,509)$                 
INTEREST -                            -                          2,675                   2,675                      
LESS: DISCOUNT ASSESSMENTS (4%) (7,715)                   -                          -                           -                              

TOTAL REVENUE 177,438                  111,092                 85,258                  (25,834)                    

EXPENDITURES

COUNTY - ASSESSMENT COLLECTION FEES 7,715                    -                          -                           -                              
INTEREST EXPENSE -                           
  MAY 1, 2018 67,856                  67,856                 67,856                 -                              
  NOVEMBER 1, 2018 67,856                  -                          -                           -                              
PRINCIPAL RETIREMENT
  MAY 1, 2018 -                            -                          -                           -                              

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 143,427                  67,856                   67,856                  -                               

EXCESS REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPEND. 34,011                  43,236                 17,402                 (25,834)                   
TRANSFER IN 
TRANSFER OUT (1,407)                  
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING -                            244,331                244,331                   

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 34,011.00$             43,236$                 260,326$              218,497$                  

Avalon Groves Community Development District
SERIES 2017A-1 (AA1)

For The Period  Starting October 1, 2017 Ending July 31, 2018



FY2018 VARIANCE
 ADOPTED BUDGET ACTUAL FAVORABLE

BUDGET YEAR-TO-DATE YEAR-TO-DATE (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUE

SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS - ON/OFF ROLL 562,845$               337,707               252,176$              (85,531)$                 
INTEREST -                            -                          7,101                   7,101                      
LESS: DISCOUNT ASSESSMENTS (4%) (23,452)                 -                          -                           -                              

TOTAL REVENUE 539,393                  337,707                 259,277                (78,430)                    

EXPENDITURES

COUNTY - ASSESSMENT COLLECTION FEES (3.5%) 23,452                  -                          -                           -                              
INTEREST EXPENSE -                           
  MAY 1, 2018 212,684                212,684               212,684               -                              
  NOVEMBER 1, 2018 212,684                -                          -                           -                              
PRINCIPAL RETIREMENT
  MAY 1, 2018 -                            -                          -                           -                              

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 448,820                  212,684                 212,684                -                               

EXCESS REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPEND. 90,573                  125,023               46,593                 (78,430)                   
TRANSFER IN
TRANSFER OUT (4,278)                  
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING -                            745,770                745,770                   

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 90,573.00$             125,023$               788,085$              667,340$                  

Avalon Groves Community Development District
SERIES 2017A-1 (AA2)

For The Period  Starting October 1, 2017 Ending July 31, 2018



FY2018 VARIANCE
 ADOPTED BUDGET ACTUAL FAVORABLE

BUDGET YEAR-TO-DATE YEAR-TO-DATE (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUE

SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS - ON/OFF ROLL 286,957$               286,957               1,686,696$           1,399,739$              
INTEREST -                            -                          5,500                   5,500                      
LESS: DISCOUNT ASSESSMENTS (4%) (11,957)                 -                          -                           -                              

TOTAL REVENUE 275,000                  286,957                 1,692,196             1,405,239                 

EXPENDITURES

COUNTY - ASSESSMENT COLLECTION FEES 11,957                  -                          -                           -                              
INTEREST EXPENSE -                           
  MAY 1, 2018 132,000                -                          127,875               (127,875)                 
  NOVEMBER 1, 2018 132,000                -                          -                           -                              
PRINCIPAL PREPAYMENT 690,000               
  MAY 1, 2018 -                            -                          -                           -                              

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 275,957                  -                            817,875                (127,875)                  

EXCESS REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPEND. (957)                      286,957               874,321               1,533,114                
TRANSFER IN
TRANSFER OUT (2,181)                  
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING -                            400,149                400,149                   

FUND BALANCE - ENDING (957.00)$                 286,957$               1,272,289$           1,933,263$               

Avalon Groves Community Development District
SERIES 2017A-2 (AA2)

For The Period  Starting October 1, 2017 Ending July 31, 2018



Statement of Revenue, Expenditures And Changes In Fund Balance

ACTUAL
YEAR-TO-DATE

REVENUES
BOND PROCEEDS -$                           
INTEREST 10,604                    

TOTAL REVENUES 10,604                    

EXPENDITURES
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 893,193                  
TRUSTEE FEES -                             

TOTAL EXPENSE   893,193                  

TOTAL EXPENDITURES ## 893,193                  

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (882,589)                
TRANSFER IN 1,407                      
TRANSFER OUT -                             
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 1,241,417               

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 360,235$                

Avalon Groves Community Development District

For The Period Ending July 31, 2018

Construction In Progress (AA1)



Statement of Revenue, Expenditures And Changes In Fund Balance

ACTUAL
YEAR-TO-DATE

REVENUES
BOND PROCEEDS -$                            
INTEREST 3,972                      

TOTAL REVENUES 3,972                      

EXPENDITURES
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 1,206,602               
TRUSTEE FEES -                              

TOTAL EXPENSE   1,206,602               

TOTAL EXPENDITURES ## 1,206,602               

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (1,202,630)              
TRANSFER IN 4,278                      
TRANSFER OUT -                              
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 987,508                  

FUND BALANCE - ENDING (210,844)$               

Avalon Groves Community Development District
Construction In Progress A-1 (AA2)

For The Period Ending Juiy 31, 2018



Statement of Revenue, Expenditures And Changes In Fund Balance

ACTUAL
YEAR-TO-DATE

REVENUES
INSURANCE CLAIM 719,000$                
INTEREST 9,884                      

TOTAL REVENUES 728,884                  

EXPENDITURES
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 1,594,709               
TRUSTEE FEES -                              

TOTAL EXPENSE   1,594,709               

TOTAL EXPENDITURES ## 1,594,709               

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (865,825)                 
TRANSFER IN 2,181                      
TRANSFER OUT -                              
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 1,368,421               

FUND BALANCE - ENDING 504,777$                

Avalon Groves Community Development District
Construction In Progress A-2 (AA2)

For The Period Ending July 31, 2018



5.84



BU

Balance Per Bank Statement  47,570.66$           

Less: Outstanding AP Checks (2,074.58)             

Adjusted Bank Balance 45,496.08$           

Beginning Bank Balance Per Books 35,928.83$           

Deposits & Interest 27,519.99             

Cash Disbursements (17,952.74)           

Balance Per Books 45,496.08$           

Avalon Groves Community Development District
Bank Reconciliation

July 31, 2018

Page 11 of 13



DATE CK NO. PAYEE TRANSACTION DEPOSIT DISBURSEMENT BALANCE 
9/30/2017 EOY Balance 0.00 159.29 0.00

10/06/2017 Developer Funding GF 2017-26 7,919.77 7,919.77
10/06/2017 1050 Egis Insurance Risk Advisors Ins. FY 2018 5,300.00 2,619.77
10/06/2017 1051 Heidt Design Engineering Svcs 205.00 2,414.77
10/06/2017 1052 Orlando Sentinel Legal Ads 2,177.04 237.73
10/06/2017 1053 Venturesin.com, Inc. Web Site Hosting - September 80.00 157.73
10/13/2017 Developer Funding GF 2017-25 22,988.66 23,146.39
10/13/2017 1054 Daily Commercial Legal Ad 129.68 23,016.71
10/13/2017 1055 DPFG MANAGEMENT AND CONSULTING, LLC BOS Mtg - 8/24/17 4,000.00 19,016.71
10/13/2017 1056 Heidt Design Design Svcs - July 670.00 18,346.71
10/13/2017 1057 Hopping Green & Sams Legal Services 13,188.98 5,157.73
10/13/2017 1058 Regions Bank. Fees - Series 2017 5,000.00 157.73
10/18/2017 1059 Daily Commercial VOID 0.00 157.73
10/18/2017 1060 Daily Commercial Legal Ad 26.18 131.55
10/31/2017 EOM Balance 30,908.43 30,776.88 131.55
11/01/2017 O & M (K Title) 4,342.10 4,473.65
11/03/2017 1061 Daily Commercial Legal Ad 183.91 4,289.74
11/03/2017 1062 Venturesin.com, Inc. Web Site Hosting - October 80.00 4,209.74
11/03/2017 1063 FLORIDA DEPT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNIT Annual Filing - FY 2018 175.00 4,034.74
11/14/2017 1064 Daily Commercial Legal Ad 144.64 3,890.10
11/29/2017 1065 BOB McKEE, LAKE COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR Ad Valorem Taxes 2,738.30 1,151.80
11/30/2017 1066 BOB McKEE, LAKE COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR Property Tax 361.17 790.63
11/30/2017 EOM Balance 4,342.10 3,683.02 790.63
12/08/2017 1067 LAKE & WETLAND MANAGEMENT Lake Maint - December 535.00 255.63
12/08/2017 1068 Orlando Sentinel Legal Ad 283.17 -27.54
12/09/2017 Ashton Orlando O & M (K Title) 3,101.50 3,073.96
12/14/2017 NVR Settlement O & M (K Title) 1,240.60 4,314.56
12/27/2017 1069 Sumter Electric Cooperative Voided 0.00 4,314.56
12/27/2017 1070 Sumter Electric Cooperative Voided 0.00 4,314.56
12/27/2017 1071 Sumter Electric Cooperative Deposit - 17494 Sawgrass Bay Bl 0.00 193.00 4,121.56
12/27/2017 1072 Sumter Electric Cooperative Deposit - 16920 Sawgrass Bay Bl 0.00 193.00 3,928.56
12/27/2017 Developer Funding GF 2018-01 20,731.55 24,660.11
12/28/2017 1073 DPFG MANAGEMENT AND CONSULTING, LLC Oct-Dec Fees / Dissimenation 13,000.00 11,660.11
12/28/2017 1074 Heidt Design Engineering Svcs 968.75 10,691.36
12/28/2017 1075 Hopping Green & Sams Legal Services 6,582.81 4,108.55
12/28/2017 1076 Venturesin.com, Inc. Website Host - Nov 179.99 3,928.56
12/31/2017 EOM Balance 25,073.65 21,935.72 3,928.56
01/11/2018 Developer Funding O & M (K Title) 1,240.60 5,169.16
01/15/2018 1077 Daily Commercial Legal Ad 150.25 5,018.91
01/18/2018 1078 Heidt Design Engineering Svcs 205.00 4,813.91
01/18/2018 1079 Venturesin.com, Inc. Web Site Hosting - January 80.00 4,733.91
01/29/2018 1080 DPFG MANAGEMENT AND CONSULTING, LLC CDD Mgmt - January 2,000.00 2,733.91
01/31/2018 Developer Funding O & M (K Title) 2,481.20 5,215.11
1/31/2018 EOM Balance 3,721.80 2,435.25 5,215.11
02/07/2018 1081 DPFG MANAGEMENT AND CONSULTING, LLC CDD Mgmt - February 2,000.00 3,215.11
02/07/2018 1082 Heidt Design Engineering Svcs - November 340.00 2,875.11
02/07/2018 1083 Orlando Sentinel Legal Ad 101.25 2,773.86
02/07/2018 1084 Venturesin.com, Inc. Web Site Hosting - February 80.00 2,693.86
02/07/2018 1085 LAKE & WETLAND MANAGEMENT Lake Maint - February 535.00 2,158.86
02/13/2018 1086 Daily Commercial VOIDED 0.00 2,158.86
02/20/2018 1087 Heidt Design Engineering Services 205.00 1,953.86
02/21/2018 1088 Voided Check VOIDED 0.00 1,953.86
02/21/2018 Developer Funding GF 2018-02 18,515.93 20,469.79
02/21/2018 1089 Hopping Green & Sams Legal Services 16,515.93 3,953.86
02/27/2018 DR Horton O & M (Old Republic National Title 70,962.64 74,916.50
2/28/2018 EOM Balance 89,478.57 19,777.18 74,916.50
03/01/2018 K Title Company O & M (K Title Co) 8,063.90 82,980.40
03/02/2018 1090 Hopping Green & Sams Legal Services 7,952.68 75,027.72
03/02/2018 1091 U.S. LAWNS Landscape Maint. Jan-Mar 5,985.00 69,042.72
03/02/2018 1092 Venturesin.com, Inc. Web Site Hosting - March 80.00 68,962.72
03/02/2018 1093 Voided check 0.00 68,962.72
03/12/2018 1094 Hopping Green & Sams Legal Servies 2,750.50 66,212.22
03/12/2018 1095 Candice Smith Voided check 0.00 66,212.22
03/14/2018 1096 DPFG MANAGEMENT AND CONSULTING, LLC CDD - Mtg 6,000.00 60,212.22
03/15/2018 1097 Sumter Electric Cooperative Deposit/Membership Fee 72.00 60,140.22
03/18/2018 K Title Company O & M (K Title) 1,240.60 61,380.82
3/31/2018 EOM Balance 9,304.50 22,840.18 61,380.82
04/01/2018 1098 DPFG MANAGEMENT AND CONSULTING, LLC CDD Mgmt - April 2,000.00 59,380.82
04/06/2018 1099 LAKE & WETLAND MANAGEMENT Lake Maint - April 535.00 58,845.82
04/06/2018 1100 Regions Bank. Trustee Fees 7,000.00 51,845.82
04/06/2018 1101 U.S. LAWNS Landscape Maint - April 1,995.00 49,850.82
04/18/2018 1102 Hopping Green & Sams Legal Services 835.39 49,015.43
04/24/2018 1103 BIO-TECH CONSULTING, INC. 2,800.00 46,215.43
04/24/2018 1104 Venturesin.com, Inc. Web Site Hosting - April 80.00 46,135.43
04/26/2018 K Title Company O & M (K Title) 2,481.20 48,616.63
04/26/2018 K Title Company Lot Closing (K Title) 4,700.28 53,316.91

Avalon Groves CDD
Check Register

Operating Account
FY 2018

Page 12 of 13



DATE CK NO. PAYEE TRANSACTION DEPOSIT DISBURSEMENT BALANCE 

Avalon Groves CDD
Check Register

Operating Account
FY 2018

04/26/2018 K Title Company Lot Closing (K Title) 84,904.96 138,221.87
4/30/2018 EOM Balance 92,086.44 15,245.39 138,221.87
05/01/2018 1105 DPFG MANAGEMENT AND CONSULTING, LLC Voided chk 0.00 138,221.87
05/09/2018 1106 Hopping Green & Sams 799.90 137,421.97
05/09/2018 1107 LAKE & WETLAND MANAGEMENT Lake Maint - March 535.00 136,886.97
05/09/2018 1108 U.S. LAWNS Landscape Maint - May 1,995.00 134,891.97
05/09/2018 1109 Venturesin.com, Inc. Web Site Hosting - May 80.00 134,811.97
05/31/2018 1110 Regions Bank. Voided check 0.00 134,811.97
05/31/2018 1111 Regions Bank. Lot Closing (K Title) 1,254.75 133,557.22
05/31/2018 1112 Regions Bank. Lot Closing (K Title) 83,650.21 49,907.01
05/31/2018 1113 Regions Bank. Lot Closing (K Title) 4,700.28 45,206.73
5/31/2018 EOM Balance 0.00 93,015.14 45,206.73
06/05/2018 1114 Hopping Green & Sams Legal Services 3,269.70 41,937.03
06/05/2018 1115 LAKE & WETLAND MANAGEMENT Lake Maint - June 535.00 41,402.03
06/05/2018 1116 U.S. LAWNS Landscape Maint - June 1,995.00 39,407.03
06/13/2018 1117 Dibartolomeo, McBee, Hartley & Barnes, PA Audit FY 2017 2,500.00 36,907.03
06/15/2018 NVR O & M (NVR Settlement Svcs) 2,481.20 39,388.23
06/15/2018 1118 LAKE COUNTY PROPERTY APPRAISER Non Ad Valorem Collections 50.00 39,338.23
06/22/2018 1119 LAKE & WETLAND MANAGEMENT Lake Maint - January 535.00 38,803.23
06/22/2018 1120 Venturesin.com, Inc. Web Site Hosting - June 80.00 38,723.23
06/25/2018 1121 LAKE & WETLAND MANAGEMENT Lake Maint - May 535.00 38,188.23
06/25/2018 VK Avalon O & M (K Title) 1,240.60 39,428.83
06/27/2018 1122 Regions Bank. Trustee Fee Series 2017A-2 3,500.00 35,928.83
6/30/2018 EOM Balance 3,721.80 12,999.70 35,928.83
07/02/2018 1123 Hopping Green & Sams Legal Services 1,557.17 34,371.66
07/02/2018 1124 LAKE & WETLAND MANAGEMENT Lake Maint - July 535.00 33,836.66
07/02/2018 1125 U.S. LAWNS Landscape Maint - July 1,995.00 31,841.66
07/05/2018 1126 Venturesin.com, Inc. Web Site Hosting - July 80.00 31,761.66
07/10/2018 1127 BIO-TECH CONSULTING, INC. Consulting Fees 2,800.00 28,961.66
07/18/2018 VK Avalon DS & O&M 14,493.69 43,455.35
07/18/2018 VK Avalon O & M (K Title) 7,443.60 50,898.95
07/18/2018 VK Avalon O & M (K Title) 4,342.10 55,241.05
07/19/2018 1128 Regions Bank. Lot Closing - 8,910.99 46,330.06
07/23/2018 VK Avalon O & M (K Title) 1,240.60 47,570.66
07/26/2018 1129 Daily Commercial Legal Ads 1,770.32 45,800.34
07/26/2018 1130 Tampa Print Services, Inc. Mass Mailing 304.26 45,496.08
7/31/2018 EOM Balance 27,519.99 17,952.74 45,496.08

Page 13 of 13



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 3 



RESOLUTION 2018-06 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF AVALON 
GROVES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT DESIGNATING 
DATES, TIME AND LOCATION FOR REGULAR MEETINGS OF THE 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE 

 
WHEREAS, Avalon Groves Community Development District (hereinafter the “District”) is a 

local unit of special-purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, 
being situated entirely within the Lake County, Florida; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Supervisors (hereinafter the “Board”), is statutorily 

authorized to exercise the powers granted to the District, but has not heretofore met; and 
 

WHEREAS, all meetings of the Board shall be open to the public and governed by the 
provisions of Chapter 286, Florida Statutes; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District is required by Florida law to prepare an annual schedule of its regular 

public meetings which designates the date, time, and location of the District’s meetings. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
AVALON GROVESCOMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT THAT: 

 
Section 1. The annual public meeting schedule of the Board of Supervisors for the Fiscal Year 

2018/2019 attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein as Exhibit A is hereby approved and will 
be published and filed in accordance with the requirements of Florida law. 

 
Section 2. The District Manager is hereby directed to submit a copy of the Fiscal Year  

2018/2019 annual public meeting schedule to Lake County and the Department of Economic Opportunity. 
 

Section 3. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 27th DAY OF AUGUST, 2018. 
 

ATTEST: AVALON 
GROVESCOMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
 
 

Secretary/ Assistant Secretary Chair/ Vice Chair 
Print Name:   Print Name:    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



NOTICE OF MEETINGS 
FISCAL YEAR 2019 

AVALON GROVES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 

As required by Chapters 189 and 190 of Florida Statutes, notice is hereby given that the Fiscal Year 
 

2019 regular meetings of the Board of Supervisors of the Avalon Groves Community Development District 

are scheduled to be held on the fourth Thursday of every month at 11:30 a.m. at the C a g a n  C r o s s i n g  

C o m m u n i t y  L i b r a r y  l o c a t e d  a t  1 6 7 2 9  C a g a n  O a k s ,  C l e r m o n t ,  F l o r i d a  3 4 7 1 4 .  The meeting 

dates are as follows (exceptions noted below): 
 
 

October 25, 2018 

November 6, 2018 (LO Meeting) 
 

November 22, 2018 (Reg Meeting) 

               December 27, 2018   

               January 24, 2019 

February 28, 2019 
 

March 28, 2019 
 

April 25, 2019 
 

May 23, 2019 
 

June 27, 2019 
 

July 25, 2019 
 

August 22, 2019 
 

September 26, 2019 
 
 

The meetings will be open to the public and will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of 

Florida Law for Community Development Districts. Any meeting may be continued with no additional notice to a 

date, time and place to be specified on the record at a meeting. A copy of the agenda for the meetings listed 

above may be obtained from Development Planning and Financing Group [DPFG], 250 International Parkway, Suite 

280, Lake Mary FL  32756 at (321) 263-0132, one week prior to the meeting. 
 

There may be occasions when one or more supervisors will participate by telephone or other remote 
device. 

 

In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special 

accommodations at this meeting because of a disability or physical impairment should contact DPFG at (813) 

418-7473 X-102. If  you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Florida Relay Service at (800) 955-

8770 for aid in contacting the District Office at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the date of the hearing and 

meeting. 

Each person who decides to appeal any action taken at the meetings is advised that the person will 

need a record of proceedings and that accordingly, the person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the 

proceedings is made, including the testimony and evidence upon which such appeal is to be based. 
 
 

DPFG, District Management 
 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 4 



RESOLUTION 2018-07 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE AVALON GROVES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT AMENDING RESOLUTION 2018-05 TO RE-SET 
THE DATE OF THE PUBLIC HEARING ON THE 
PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018/2019; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Avalon Groves Community Development District (“District”) is a local 
unit of special-purpose government established pursuant to the Uniform Community 
Development District Act of 1980, as codified in Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, for the purpose 
of planning, financing, constructing, operating and/or maintaining certain infrastructure 
improvements; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on May 24, 2018, at a duly noticed public meeting, the District’s Board of 
Supervisors (“Board”) adopted Resolution 2018-05, approving the proposed budget for Fiscal 
Year 2018-2019 and setting a public hearing on the proposed budget for August 23, 2018 at 
11:30 a.m. at the Cagan Crossing Community Library, 16729 Cagan Oaks, Clermont, Florida; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, due to a conflict at the Cagan Crossing Community Library, the District 
Manager rescheduled the date of the public hearing to August 27, 2018 at 11:30 a.m. at the 
Cagan Crossing Community Library, 16729 Cagan Oaks, Clermont, Florida, and the District 
Manager has caused the notice of the public hearing, with the new date to be published in a 
newspaper of general circulation in Lake County, Florida consistent with the requirements of 
Chapters 190 and 197, Florida Statutes; and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors desires to ratify the District Manager’s action in 
re-setting the public hearing. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD 
OF SUPERVISORS OF THE AVALON GROVES 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 
 SECTION 1. PUBLIC HEARING LOCATION RESET. The District Manager’s 
actions in re-setting the public hearing are hereby ratified. Resolution 2018-05 is hereby 
amended to reflect that the location of the public hearing as declared in Resolution 2018-05 is 
reset to: 
 

August 27, 2018 at 11:30 a.m. at the Cagan Crossing Community Library, 16729 
Cagan Oaks, Clermont, Florida. 

 
The District Manager shall send a copy of this Resolution to Lake County upon adoption.  
 



SECTION 2. RESOLUTION 2018-05 OTHERWISE REMAINS IN FULL FORCE 
AND EFFECT.  Except as otherwise provided herein, all of the provisions of Resolution 2018-
05 continue in full force and effect. 
 
 SECTION 3. SEVERABILITY.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more 
provisions of this Resolution shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining 
portions of this Resolution, or any part thereof. 
 
 SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall take effect upon its passage 
and adoption by the Board. 
 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 27th  day of August, 2018. 
 
 
ATTEST:      AVALON GROVES COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
_____________________________   By:___________________________ 
Secretary    
       Its:____________________________ 
 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 5 



Page 1 of 11

REVENUE:
SPECIAL ASSESEMENTS (LANDOWNER OFF-ROLL)
DEVELOPER FUNDING
TEMPORATY DEPOSIT ACCOUNT

TOTAL REVENUE:

EXPENDITURES:
GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE:
DISTRICT MANAGEMENT SERVICES
DISTRICT ACCOUNTING SERVICES
BANK FEES
AUDITING
REGULATORY AND PERMIT FEES
LEGAL ADVERTISEMENTS
ENGINEERING SERVICES
LEGAL SERVICES
TECHNOLOGY & WEBSITE ADMIN.
MISCELLANEOUS (appraisal, mailing, etc.)
TOTAL GENERAL ADMIN.

INSURANCE:
INSURANCE
TOTAL INSURANCE

DEBT SERVICE ADMIN. :
DISCLOSURE REPORT
ARBITRAGE REBATE
TRUSTEE FEES
TOTAL DEBT SERVICE ADMIN.

UTILITIES:
UTILITIES-ELECTRICITY
STREETLIGHTS
UTILITY CONTINGENCY
TOTAL UTILITIES:

PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT:
LAKE & POND MAINTENANCE
LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE(Ponds, Ph 1A & Serenoa Blvd.)
LANDSCAPE - MISC.
WETLAND MITIGATION & MONITORING
FIELD MANAGEMENT
FIELD CONTINGENCY
HARDSCAPE REPAIRS & MAINT.
BUILDOUT CONTINGENCY
TOTAL PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT

TOTAL EXPENDITURES:
EXCESS OVER (UNDER) REVENUES:

STATEMENT 1

AVALON GROVES

GENERAL FUND

FY 2019 PROPOSED BUDGET

FY 2016 FY 2017 2018 2018 2019 VARIANCE
ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED 3/31/2018 PROPOSED 2018-2019

$ - $ - $ 300,474 $ 92,673 $ 320,435 $ 19,961
19,617 149,087 43,036 - $ -

2,481
19,617 149,087 300,474 138,190 320,435 19,961

8,000 44,000 8,000 20,000 32,000 24,000
- - 24,000 - - (24,000)
- 28 150 - 150 -
- - 3,500 - 2,500 (1,000)

100 175 175 175 175 -
496 6,037 750 889 4,000 3,250

- 4,975 10,000 1,719 12,000 2,000
10,844 79,902 16,000 28,978 25,000 9,000

177 960 960 580 960 -
- 5,600 500 3,104 500 -

19,617 141,677 64,035 55,446 77,285 13,250

- 2,410 5,851 5,300 5,830 (21)
- 2,410 5,851 5,300 5,830 (21)

- 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 -
- - 700 - 1,500 800
- - 3,800 7,000 7,500 3,700
- 5,000 9,500 12,000 14,000 4,500

- - 2,500 - 2,500 -
- - 62,454 - 68,400 5,946
- - 5,000 - 5,000 -
- - 2,500 - 75,900 5,946

- - 20,400 1,605 6,420 (13,980)
- - 95,734 7,980 106,000 10,266
- - 5,000 - 5,000 -
- - 14,000 2,800 14,000 -
- - 6,000 - 6,000 -
- - 5,000 - 5,000 -
- - 5,000 - 5,000 -
- - - - - -
- - 151,134 12,385 147,420 (3,714)

19,617 149,087 233,020 85,131 320,435 19,961
- - 67,454 53,059 - -



Page 2 of 11

STATEMENT 2
AVALON GROVES

FY 2019 PROPOSED BUDGET
GENERAL FUND (O&M) ASSESSMENT ALLOCATION

1. ERU Assignment and Calculation
Phase Planned Lots ERU / Lots Total ERU
AA 1 580 1.00 580
AA 2 479 1.00 479
Total 1059 1059

1a. ERU Allocation Driver based on Development Status of Lots

Assessment Area One
Assessment Area Two

Total Lots
Assigned ERU

Total Assigned ERU
% Allocation per share of ERU

2. O&M Assessment Requirement ("AR") - IF all assessments are ON Roll

Expenditures Platted Lots Un-Platted Lots
Grand Total

/(1)
Share of

Total
Benefit to Un-
Platted /(2)

2a. Allocation of O&M Assessment: FY 2019

Status Lots ERU / Lot Net Assmt / Lot
Gross Assmt

/ Lot
Total Gross

Assmt
Platted 417 1.00 $ 648 $ 704 $ 293,530
Un-Platted 642 1.00 $ 78 $ 85 $ 54,769
Total 1059 $ 348,299

3. Allocation of O&M Assessment: FY 2018

Status Lots ERU / Lot Net Assmt / Lot
Gross Assmt

/ Lot
Total Gross

Assmt
Platted 416 1.00 $ 620 $ 674 $ 280,480
Un-Platted 643 1.00 $ 66 $ 72 $ 46,129
Total 1059 $ 326,609

4. Change from Prior Fiscal Year

Status
Change in Gross

Assmt / Lot
% Change Gross

Assmt / Lot
Platted $ 30 4.78%
Un-Platted $ 14 20.56%
Total

Platted Un-Platted Total Lots
196 384 580
221 258 479
417 642 1059

1.00 1.00
417 642 1059

39.38% 60.62%

GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE 30,432 46,853 77,285 24.12% Yes
INSURANCE 2,296 3,534 5,830 1.82% Yes

DEBT ADMINISTRATION 14,000 - 14,000 4.37% No
UTILITIES 75,900 - 75,900 23.69% No

PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT 147,420 - 147,420 46.01% No
Subtotal (Net) /[a] 270,048 50,387 320,435 100.0%

Early Payment Discount 11,741 2,191 13,932
County Charges

Total (Gross)
Share of Total Expenditures

11,741 2,191 13,932
293,530 54,768 348,299 [b]
84.28% 15.72% 100.00%

Total ERU 417.0 642.0 1,059.0 [c]
Total AR / ERU - GROSS $ 703.91 $ 85.31 $ 328.90 [b] / [c]
Total AR / ERU - NET $ 647.60 $ 78.49 $ 302.59 [a] / [c]



Page 3 of 11

STATEMENT 3
AVALON GROVESCDD

FY 2019 PROPOSED CONTRACT SUMMARY

FINANCIAL STATEMENT CATEGORY SERVICE PROVIDER (VENDOR)
ANNUAL CONTRACT

$ COMMENTS (SCOPE OF SERVICE)

DISTRICT MANAGEMENT SERVICES DPFG $32,000 Estimated at $4,000 per meeting, estimated at 8 meetings

DISTRICT ACCOUNTING SERVICES DPFG $0

BANK FEES Bank United $150

AUDITING SERVICES DMHB $2,500 Audit fees per engagement letter are as follows, $2,500 for FY 2017,
$2,600 for FY 2018 and $2,750 for FY 2019

REGULATORY AND PERMIT FEES State of Florida $175

LEGAL ADVERTISEMENTS Daily Commercial $4,000 Increase in budget in anticipation of a bond issuance

ENGINEERING SERVICES Heidt Design $12,000

LEGAL SERVICES Hopping Green & Sams $25,000 Amounts increased in anticipation of bond issuance

TECHNOLOGY &WEBSITE ADMINISTRATION Atlas Professional Services $960

MISCELLANEOUS $500

INSURANCE EGIS $5,830 Professional Liability is $2,651. General liability estimated at $3,200. Will
need to add property schedule as completed.

DISCLOSURE REPORT DPFG $5,000

ARBITRAGE REBATE $1,500 Increase in budget in anticipation of a bond issuance

TRUSTEE FEES $7,500 Increase in budget in anticipation of a bond issuance

UTILITIES $2,500 Estimated for lift stations, etc.

STREETLIGHTS $68,400 Streetlights for FY 2018 includes 70 poles. Estimated at $5,700 monthly
for purchase and install for 36 months

UTILITY CONTINGENCY $5,000 Estimated

LAKE & POND MAINTENANCE Lake &Werland Management $6,420 Lake management service including algae, border grass, and invasive plant
control

LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE $106,000 Based on estimate recevied from Rabdy Suggs

LANDSCAPE MISC. $5,000 Miscellaneous

WETLAND MITIGATION &MONITORING BioTech $14,000 Collector Road - $6,000. One time baseline setup-$3,600. Phase 1A-
$2,800 and One time baseline setup-$1,600

FIELD MANAGEMENT $6,000

FIELD CONTINGENCY $5,000

HARDSCAPE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE $5,000

BUILDOUT CONTINGENCY $0

Total $320,435



Page 4 of 11

AVALON GROVES CDD
FY 2019 PROPOSED BUDGET

SERIES 2017 ASSESSMENT AREA ONE

REVENUE
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS - ON-ROLL/OFF ROLL
CAPITAL INTEREST
INTEREST - INVESTMENT
FUND BALANCE FORWARD
LESS: DISCOUNT ASSESSMENTS

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENDITURES
COUNTY - ASSESSMENT COLLECTION FEES
INTEREST EXPENSE
05/01/19
11/01/19

PRINCIPAL RETIREMENT
05/01/19

BUDGET

$ 185,153
-
-
-

(7,715)
177,439

7,715

67,856
66,981

35,000
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 177,552

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (110)

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING -
FUND BALANCE - ENDING $ (110)

Table 1. Allocation of Maximum Annual Debt Service (MADS) to Lots (AA One)

Lot Width Units ERU Total ERU % ERU Annual Assmt
Annual

Assmt/Unit
50 580 1.00 580.00 100.00% 170,338 294

Total 580 580.00 100.00% 170,338

MADS Assmt. per ERU - net 294
MADS Assmt. per ERU - gross 319

Total revenue - gross 185,153



Page 5 of 11

AVALON GROVES CDD
$2,415,000 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS SERIES 2017 AREA ONE

Debt Service Requirement

Period Ending Principal /(a) Coupon Interest /(a) Debt Service Annual Dbt Srvc
Principal
Balance

4/6/2017 2,415,000
11/1/2017 5.000% 77,280.73 77,280.73 77,280.73 2,415,000
5/1/2018 5.000% 67,856.25 67,856.25 2,415,000

11/1/2018 5.000% 67,856.25 67,856.25 135,712.50 2,415,000
5/1/2019 35,000 5.000% 67,856.25 102,856.25 2,380,000

11/1/2019 5.000% 66,981.25 66,981.25 169,837.50 2,380,000
5/1/2020 35,000 5.000% 66,981.25 101,981.25 2,345,000

11/1/2020 5.000% 66,106.25 66,106.25 168,087.50 2,345,000
5/1/2021 35,000 5.000% 66,106.25 101,106.25 2,310,000

11/1/2021 5.000% 65,231.25 65,231.25 166,337.50 2,310,000
5/1/2022 40,000 5.000% 65,231.25 105,231.25 2,270,000

11/1/2022 5.000% 64,231.25 64,231.25 169,462.50 2,270,000
5/1/2023 40,000 5.000% 64,231.25 104,231.25 2,230,000

11/1/2023 5.000% 63,231.25 63,231.25 167,462.50 2,230,000
5/1/2024 45,000 5.000% 63,231.25 108,231.25 2,185,000

11/1/2024 5.000% 62,106.25 62,106.25 170,337.50 2,185,000
5/1/2025 45,000 5.000% 62,106.25 107,106.25 2,140,000

11/1/2025 5.000% 60,981.25 60,981.25 168,087.50 2,140,000
5/1/2026 45,000 5.000% 60,981.25 105,981.25 2,095,000

11/1/2026 5.000% 59,856.25 59,856.25 165,837.50 2,095,000
5/1/2027 50,000 5.000% 59,856.25 109,856.25 2,045,000

11/1/2027 5.000% 58,606.25 58,606.25 168,462.50 2,045,000
5/1/2028 50,000 5.000% 58,606.25 108,606.25 1,995,000

11/1/2028 5.000% 57,356.25 57,356.25 165,962.50 1,995,000
5/1/2029 55,000 5.750% 57,356.25 112,356.25 1,940,000

11/1/2029 5.750% 55,775.00 55,775.00 168,131.25 1,940,000
5/1/2030 60,000 5.750% 55,775.00 115,775.00 1,880,000

11/1/2030 5.750% 54,050.00 54,050.00 169,825.00 1,880,000
5/1/2031 60,000 5.750% 54,050.00 114,050.00 1,820,000

11/1/2031 5.750% 52,325.00 52,325.00 166,375.00 1,820,000
5/1/2032 65,000 5.750% 52,325.00 117,325.00 1,755,000

11/1/2032 5.750% 50,456.25 50,456.25 167,781.25 1,755,000
5/1/2033 70,000 5.750% 50,456.25 120,456.25 1,685,000

11/1/2033 5.750% 48,443.75 48,443.75 168,900.00 1,685,000
5/1/2034 75,000 5.750% 48,443.75 123,443.75 1,610,000

11/1/2034 5.750% 46,287.50 46,287.50 169,731.25 1,610,000
5/1/2035 80,000 5.750% 46,287.50 126,287.50 1,530,000

11/1/2035 5.750% 43,987.50 43,987.50 170,275.00 1,530,000
5/1/2036 80,000 5.750% 43,987.50 123,987.50 1,450,000

11/1/2036 5.750% 41,687.50 41,687.50 165,675.00 1,450,000
5/1/2037 85,000 5.750% 41,687.50 126,687.50 1,365,000

11/1/2037 5.750% 39,243.75 39,243.75 165,931.25 1,365,000
5/1/2038 90,000 5.750% 39,243.75 129,243.75 1,275,000

11/1/2038 5.750% 36,656.25 36,656.25 165,900.00 1,275,000
5/1/2039 95,000 5.750% 36,656.25 131,656.25 1,180,000

11/1/2039 5.750% 33,925.00 33,925.00 165,581.25 1,180,000



Page 6 of 11

AVALON GROVES CDD
$2,415,000 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS SERIES 2017 AREA ONE

Debt Service Requirement

Period Ending Principal /(a) Coupon Interest /(a) Debt Service Annual Dbt Srvc
Principal
Balance

5/1/2040 105,000 5.750% 33,925.00 138,925.00 1,075,000
11/1/2040 5.750% 30,906.25 30,906.25 169,831.25 1,075,000
5/1/2041 110,000 5.750% 30,906.25 140,906.25 965,000

11/1/2041 5.750% 27,743.75 27,743.75 168,650.00 965,000
5/1/2042 115,000 5.750% 27,743.75 142,743.75 850,000

11/1/2042 5.750% 24,437.50 24,437.50 167,181.25 850,000
5/1/2043 120,000 5.750% 24,437.50 144,437.50 730,000

11/1/2043 5.750% 20,987.50 20,987.50 165,425.00 730,000
5/1/2044 130,000 5.750% 20,987.50 150,987.50 600,000

11/1/2044 5.750% 17,250.00 17,250.00 168,237.50 600,000
5/1/2045 135,000 5.750% 17,250.00 152,250.00 465,000

11/1/2045 5.750% 13,368.75 13,368.75 165,618.75 465,000
5/1/2046 145,000 5.750% 13,368.75 158,368.75 320,000

11/1/2046 5.750% 9,200.00 9,200.00 167,568.75 320,000
5/1/2047 155,000 5.750% 9,200.00 164,200.00 165,000

11/1/2047 5.750% 4,743.75 4,743.75 168,943.75 165,000
5/1/2048 165,000 5.750% 4,743.75 169,743.75 -

Total $2,415,000.00 2,833,174.48 5,248,174.48 5,078,430.73

Max annual ds: $170,337.50
Footnote:
(a) Data herein for the CDD's budgetary process purposes only.



Page 7 of 11

AVALON GROVES CDD
FY 2019 PROPOSED BUDGET

SERIES 2017A-1 ASSESSMENT AREA TWO

REVENUE
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS - ON-ROLL/OFF ROLL
CAPITAL INTEREST
INTEREST - INVESTMENT
FUND BALANCE FORWARD
LESS: DISCOUNT ASSESSMENTS

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENDITURES
COUNTY - ASSESSMENT COLLECTION FEES
INTEREST EXPENSE
05/01/19
11/01/19

PRINCIPAL RETIREMENT
05/01/19

BUDGET

$ 559,241
-
-
-

(23,302)
535,939

23,302

212,684
210,131

95,000
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 541,117

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (5,180)

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING -
FUND BALANCE - ENDING $ (5,180)

Table 1. Allocation of Maximum Annual Debt Service (MADS) to Lots (2017A-1)

Lot Width Units ERU Annual Assmt
Annual

Assmt/Unit
40' 83 0.90 81,276 979
50' 294 1.00 316,682 1,077
60' 102 1.20 119,857 1,175
Total 479 517,816



Page 8 of 11

AVALON GROVES CDD
$7,215,000 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS SERIES 2017A-1 AREA TWO

Debt Service Requirement

Period Ending Principal /(a) Coupon Interest /(a) Debt Service Annual Dbt Srvc Principal Balance

4/6/2017 7,215,000
11/1/2017 5.375% 242,224 242,224 242,224 7,215,000
5/1/2018 5.375% 212,684 212,684 7,215,000

11/1/2018 5.375% 212,684 212,684 425,369 7,215,000
5/1/2019 95,000 5.375% 212,684 307,684 7,120,000

11/1/2019 5.375% 210,131 210,131 517,816 7,120,000
5/1/2020 100,000 5.375% 210,131 310,131 7,020,000

11/1/2020 5.375% 207,444 207,444 517,575 7,020,000
5/1/2021 105,000 5.375% 207,444 312,444 6,915,000

11/1/2021 5.375% 204,622 204,622 517,066 6,915,000
5/1/2022 110,000 5.375% 204,622 314,622 6,805,000

11/1/2022 5.375% 201,666 201,666 516,288 6,805,000
5/1/2023 115,000 5.375% 201,666 316,666 6,690,000

11/1/2023 5.375% 198,575 198,575 515,241 6,690,000
5/1/2024 120,000 5.375% 198,575 318,575 6,570,000

11/1/2024 5.375% 195,350 195,350 513,925 6,570,000
5/1/2025 130,000 5.375% 195,350 325,350 6,440,000

11/1/2025 5.375% 191,856 191,856 517,206 6,440,000
5/1/2026 135,000 5.375% 191,856 326,856 6,305,000

11/1/2026 5.375% 188,228 188,228 515,084 6,305,000
5/1/2027 145,000 5.375% 188,228 333,228 6,160,000

11/1/2027 5.375% 184,331 184,331 517,559 6,160,000
5/1/2028 150,000 5.375% 184,331 334,331 6,010,000

11/1/2028 5.375% 180,300 180,300 514,631 6,010,000
5/1/2029 160,000 6.000% 180,300 340,300 5,850,000

11/1/2029 6.000% 175,500 175,500 515,800 5,850,000
5/1/2030 170,000 6.000% 175,500 345,500 5,680,000

11/1/2030 6.000% 170,400 170,400 515,900 5,680,000
5/1/2031 180,000 6.000% 170,400 350,400 5,500,000

11/1/2031 6.000% 165,000 165,000 515,400 5,500,000
5/1/2032 190,000 6.000% 165,000 355,000 5,310,000

11/1/2032 6.000% 159,300 159,300 514,300 5,310,000
5/1/2033 205,000 6.000% 159,300 364,300 5,105,000

11/1/2033 6.000% 153,150 153,150 517,450 5,105,000
5/1/2034 215,000 6.000% 153,150 368,150 4,890,000

11/1/2034 6.000% 146,700 146,700 514,850 4,890,000
5/1/2035 230,000 6.000% 146,700 376,700 4,660,000

11/1/2035 6.000% 139,800 139,800 516,500 4,660,000
5/1/2036 245,000 6.000% 139,800 384,800 4,415,000

11/1/2036 6.000% 132,450 132,450 517,250 4,415,000
5/1/2037 260,000 6.000% 132,450 392,450 4,155,000

11/1/2037 6.000% 124,650 124,650 517,100 4,155,000
5/1/2038 275,000 6.000% 124,650 399,650 3,880,000

11/1/2038 6.000% 116,400 116,400 516,050 3,880,000
5/1/2039 290,000 6.000% 116,400 406,400 3,590,000

11/1/2039 6.000% 107,700 107,700 514,100 3,590,000
5/1/2040 310,000 6.000% 107,700 417,700 3,280,000

11/1/2040 6.000% 98,400 98,400 516,100 3,280,000
5/1/2041 330,000 6.000% 98,400 428,400 2,950,000



Page 9 of 11

AVALON GROVES CDD
$7,215,000 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS SERIES 2017A-1 AREA TWO

Debt Service Requirement

Period Ending Principal /(a) Coupon Interest /(a) Debt Service Annual Dbt Srvc Principal Balance
11/1/2041 6.000% 88,500 88,500 516,900 2,950,000
5/1/2042 350,000 6.000% 88,500 438,500 2,600,000

11/1/2042 6.000% 78,000 78,000 516,500 2,600,000
5/1/2043 370,000 6.000% 78,000 448,000 2,230,000

11/1/2043 6.000% 66,900 66,900 514,900 2,230,000
5/1/2044 395,000 6.000% 66,900 461,900 1,835,000

11/1/2044 6.000% 55,050 55,050 516,950 1,835,000
5/1/2045 420,000 6.000% 55,050 475,050 1,415,000

11/1/2045 6.000% 42,450 42,450 517,500 1,415,000
5/1/2046 445,000 6.000% 42,450 487,450 970,000

11/1/2046 6.000% 29,100 29,100 516,550 970,000
5/1/2047 470,000 6.000% 29,100 499,100 500,000

11/1/2047 6.000% 15,000 15,000 514,100 500,000
5/1/2048 500,000 6.000% 15,000 515,000 -

Total $7,215,000.00 8,934,183 16,149,183 15,634,183

Max annual ds: $517,815.63
Footnote:
(a) Data herein for the CDD's budgetary process purposes only.



Page 10 of 11

AVALON GROVES CDD
FY 2019 PROPOSED BUDGET

SERIES 2017A-2 ASSESSMENT AREA TWO

REVENUE
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS - ON-ROLL/OFF ROLL
CAPITAL INTEREST
INTEREST - INVESTMENT
FUND BALANCE FORWARD
LESS: DISCOUNT ASSESSMENTS

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENDITURES
COUNTY - ASSESSMENT COLLECTION FEES
INTEREST EXPENSE
05/01/19
11/01/19

PRINCIPAL RETIREMENT
05/01/19

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING
FUND BALANCE - ENDING

Table 1. Allocation of Maximum Annual Debt Service (MADS) to Lots (2017A-2)

Lot Width Units ERU Total ERU % ERU Annual Assmt
Annual

Assmt/Unit
40 53 0.90 47.70 20.86% 46,428 876
50 103 1.00 103.00 45.04% 100,253 973
60 65 1.20 78.00 34.11% 75,920 1,168

Total 221 228.70 100.00% 222,600

MADS Assmt. per ERU - net 973
MADS Assmt. per ERU - gross 1,058

Total revenue - gross 241,958

$ 241,958
-
-
-

(10,082)

10,082

111,300
111,300

-

(810)

-
(810)$

232,682

231,876

BUDGET



Page 11 of 11

AVALON GROVES CDD
$4,400,000 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS SERIES 2017A-2 AREA TWO

Debt Service Requirement

Period Ending Principal /(a)(b) Coupon Interest /(a) Debt Service Annual Dbt Srvc Principal Balance

4/6/2017 4,400,000
11/1/2017 275,000 6.000% 150,333 425,333 425,333 4,125,000
5/1/2018 415,000 6.000% 123,750 538,750 3,710,000

11/1/2018 6.000% 111,300 111,300 650,050 3,710,000
5/1/2019 6.000% 111,300 111,300 3,710,000

11/1/2019 6.000% 111,300 111,300 222,600 3,710,000
5/1/2020 6.000% 111,300 111,300 3,710,000

11/1/2020 6.000% 111,300 111,300 222,600 3,710,000
5/1/2021 6.000% 111,300 111,300 3,710,000

11/1/2021 6.000% 111,300 111,300 222,600 3,710,000
5/1/2022 6.000% 111,300 111,300 3,710,000

11/1/2022 6.000% 111,300 111,300 222,600 3,710,000
5/1/2023 6.000% 111,300 111,300 3,710,000

11/1/2023 6.000% 111,300 111,300 222,600 3,710,000
5/1/2024 6.000% 111,300 111,300 3,710,000

11/1/2024 6.000% 111,300 111,300 222,600 3,710,000
5/1/2025 6.000% 111,300 111,300 3,710,000

11/1/2025 6.000% 111,300 111,300 222,600 3,710,000
5/1/2026 6.000% 111,300 111,300 3,710,000

11/1/2026 6.000% 111,300 111,300 222,600 3,710,000
5/1/2027 6.000% 111,300 111,300 3,710,000

11/1/2027 6.000% 111,300 111,300 222,600 3,710,000
5/1/2028 6.000% 111,300 111,300 3,710,000

11/1/2028 6.000% 111,300 111,300 222,600 3,710,000
5/1/2029 3,710,000 6.000% 111,300 3,821,300 3,821,300 -

Total $4,400,000 2,722,683 7,122,683 7,122,683

Max annual ds: $222,600
Footnote:
(a) Data herein for the CDD's budgetary process purposesonly.
(b) Extraordinary Manditory Redemption of $275,000 made on2/1/2018



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 6 



RESOLUTION 2018-08 
 

THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATION RESOLUTION OF THE AVALON 
GROVES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT (“DISTRICT”) 
RELATING TO THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATIONS AND ADOPTING 
THE BUDGETS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 
2018, AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2019; AUTHORIZING BUDGET 
AMENDMENTS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the District Manager has, prior to the fifteenth (15th) day in June, 2018, 
submitted to the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of the Avalon Groves Community 
Development District (“District”) proposed budgets (“Proposed Budget”) for the fiscal year 
beginning October 1, 2018 and ending September 30, 2019 (“Fiscal Year 2018/2019”) along 
with an explanatory and complete financial plan for each fund of the District, pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 190.008(2)(a), Florida Statutes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, at least sixty (60) days prior to the adoption of the Proposed Budget, the 
District filed a copy of the Proposed Budget with the local governing authorities having 
jurisdiction over the area included in the District pursuant to the provisions of Section 
190.008(2)(b), Florida Statutes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board set a public hearing thereon and caused notice of such public 
hearing to be given by publication pursuant to Section 190.008(2)(a), Florida Statutes; and 
 

WHEREAS, the District Manager posted the Proposed Budget on the District’s website 
at least two days before the public hearing; and  

 
 WHEREAS, Section 190.008(2)(a), Florida Statutes, requires that, prior to October 1st 
of each year, the Board, by passage of the Annual Appropriation Resolution, shall adopt a budget 
for the ensuing fiscal year and appropriate such sums of money as the Board deems necessary to 
defray all expenditures of the District during the ensuing fiscal year; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District Manager has prepared a Proposed Budget, whereby the budget 
shall project the cash receipts and disbursements anticipated during a given time period, 
including reserves for contingencies for emergency or other unanticipated expenditures during 
the fiscal year. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE AVALON GROVES COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 
 SECTION 1. BUDGET 
 

a.  The Board has reviewed the Proposed Budget, a copy of which is on file with the 
office of the District Manager and at the District’s Local Records Office, and 
hereby approves certain amendments thereto, as shown in Section 2 below. 



 
b.  The Proposed Budget, attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” as amended by the Board, 

is hereby adopted in accordance with the provisions of Section 190.008(2)(a), 
Florida Statutes (“Adopted Budget”), and incorporated herein by reference; 
provided, however, that the comparative figures contained in the Adopted Budget 
may be subsequently revised as deemed necessary by the District Manager to 
reflect actual revenues and expenditures. 

 
c.  The Adopted Budget, as amended, shall be maintained in the office of the District 

Manager and at the District’s Local Records Office and identified as “The Budget 
for the Avalon Groves Community Development District for the Fiscal Year 
Ending September 30, 2019.” 

 
d. The Adopted Budget shall be posted by the District Manager on the District’s 

official website within thirty (30) days after adoption, and shall remain on the 
website for at least 2 years.   

 
 SECTION 2. APPROPRIATIONS 
 
 There is hereby appropriated out of the revenues of the District, for Fiscal Year 
2018/2019, the sum of $________________ to be raised by the levy of assessments and/or 
otherwise, which sum is deemed by the Board to be necessary to defray all expenditures of the 
District during said budget year, to be divided and appropriated in the following fashion: 
 

TOTAL GENERAL FUND    $______________ 
 
DEBT SERVICE (SERIES 2017)    $______________ 
 
DEBT SERVICE (SERIES 2017A-1)   $______________ 
 
DEBT SERVICE (SERIES 2017A-2)   $______________ 
 
TOTAL ALL FUNDS    $______________ 

 
 SECTION 3. BUDGET AMENDMENTS 
 
 Pursuant to Section 189.016, Florida Statutes, the District at any time within Fiscal Year 
2018/2019 or within 60 days following the end of the Fiscal Year 2018/2019 may amend its 
Adopted Budget for that fiscal year as follows: 
 

a. The Board may authorize an increase or decrease in line item appropriations 
within a fund by motion recorded in the minutes if the total appropriations of the 
fund do not increase. 

 
b. The District Manager or Treasurer may authorize an increase or decrease in line 

item appropriations within a fund if the total appropriations of the fund do not 



increase and if the aggregate change in the original appropriation item does not 
exceed $10,000 or 10% of the original appropriation. 

 
c. By resolution, the Board may increase any appropriation item and/or fund to 

reflect receipt of any additional unbudgeted monies and make the corresponding 
change to appropriations or the unappropriated balance. 

 
d. Any other budget amendments shall be adopted by resolution and consistent with 

Florida law. 
 
 The District Manager or Treasurer must establish administrative procedures to ensure that 
any budget amendments are in compliance with this Section 3 and Section 189.016, Florida 
Statutes, among other applicable laws.  Among other procedures, the District Manager or 
Treasurer must ensure that any amendments to budget under subparagraphs c. and d. above are 
posted on the District’s website within 5 days after adoption and remain on the website for at 
least 2 years.   
 

SECTION 4.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon 
adoption.  
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 27th  DAY OF AUGUST, 2018.  
 
ATTEST:      AVALON GROVES COMMUNITY 

 DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
       By:       
Secretary/Assistant Secretary    
       Its:       
 
 



Page 1 of 11

REVENUE:
SPECIAL ASSESEMENTS (LANDOWNER OFF-ROLL)
DEVELOPER FUNDING
TEMPORATY DEPOSIT ACCOUNT

TOTAL REVENUE:

EXPENDITURES:
GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE:
DISTRICT MANAGEMENT SERVICES
DISTRICT ACCOUNTING SERVICES
BANK FEES
AUDITING
REGULATORY AND PERMIT FEES
LEGAL ADVERTISEMENTS
ENGINEERING SERVICES
LEGAL SERVICES
TECHNOLOGY & WEBSITE ADMIN.
MISCELLANEOUS (appraisal, mailing, etc.)
TOTAL GENERAL ADMIN.

INSURANCE:
INSURANCE
TOTAL INSURANCE

DEBT SERVICE ADMIN. :
DISCLOSURE REPORT
ARBITRAGE REBATE
TRUSTEE FEES
TOTAL DEBT SERVICE ADMIN.

UTILITIES:
UTILITIES-ELECTRICITY
STREETLIGHTS
UTILITY CONTINGENCY
TOTAL UTILITIES:

PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT:
LAKE & POND MAINTENANCE
LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE(Ponds, Ph 1A & Serenoa Blvd.)
LANDSCAPE - MISC.
WETLAND MITIGATION & MONITORING
FIELD MANAGEMENT
FIELD CONTINGENCY
HARDSCAPE REPAIRS & MAINT.
BUILDOUT CONTINGENCY
TOTAL PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT

TOTAL EXPENDITURES:
EXCESS OVER (UNDER) REVENUES:

STATEMENT 1

AVALON GROVES

GENERAL FUND

FY 2019 PROPOSED BUDGET

FY 2016 FY 2017 2018 2018 2019 VARIANCE
ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED 3/31/2018 PROPOSED 2018-2019

$ - $ - $ 300,474 $ 92,673 $ 320,435 $ 19,961
19,617 149,087 43,036 - $ -

2,481
19,617 149,087 300,474 138,190 320,435 19,961

8,000 44,000 8,000 20,000 32,000 24,000
- - 24,000 - - (24,000)
- 28 150 - 150 -
- - 3,500 - 2,500 (1,000)

100 175 175 175 175 -
496 6,037 750 889 4,000 3,250

- 4,975 10,000 1,719 12,000 2,000
10,844 79,902 16,000 28,978 25,000 9,000

177 960 960 580 960 -
- 5,600 500 3,104 500 -

19,617 141,677 64,035 55,446 77,285 13,250

- 2,410 5,851 5,300 5,830 (21)
- 2,410 5,851 5,300 5,830 (21)

- 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 -
- - 700 - 1,500 800
- - 3,800 7,000 7,500 3,700
- 5,000 9,500 12,000 14,000 4,500

- - 2,500 - 2,500 -
- - 62,454 - 68,400 5,946
- - 5,000 - 5,000 -
- - 2,500 - 75,900 5,946

- - 20,400 1,605 6,420 (13,980)
- - 95,734 7,980 106,000 10,266
- - 5,000 - 5,000 -
- - 14,000 2,800 14,000 -
- - 6,000 - 6,000 -
- - 5,000 - 5,000 -
- - 5,000 - 5,000 -
- - - - - -
- - 151,134 12,385 147,420 (3,714)

19,617 149,087 233,020 85,131 320,435 19,961
- - 67,454 53,059 - -



Page 2 of 11

STATEMENT 2
AVALON GROVES

FY 2019 PROPOSED BUDGET
GENERAL FUND (O&M) ASSESSMENT ALLOCATION

1. ERU Assignment and Calculation
Phase Planned Lots ERU / Lots Total ERU
AA 1 580 1.00 580
AA 2 479 1.00 479
Total 1059 1059

1a. ERU Allocation Driver based on Development Status of Lots

Assessment Area One
Assessment Area Two

Total Lots
Assigned ERU

Total Assigned ERU
% Allocation per share of ERU

2. O&M Assessment Requirement ("AR") - IF all assessments are ON Roll

Expenditures Platted Lots Un-Platted Lots
Grand Total

/(1)
Share of

Total
Benefit to Un-
Platted /(2)

2a. Allocation of O&M Assessment: FY 2019

Status Lots ERU / Lot Net Assmt / Lot
Gross Assmt

/ Lot
Total Gross

Assmt
Platted 417 1.00 $ 648 $ 704 $ 293,530
Un-Platted 642 1.00 $ 78 $ 85 $ 54,769
Total 1059 $ 348,299

3. Allocation of O&M Assessment: FY 2018

Status Lots ERU / Lot Net Assmt / Lot
Gross Assmt

/ Lot
Total Gross

Assmt
Platted 416 1.00 $ 620 $ 674 $ 280,480
Un-Platted 643 1.00 $ 66 $ 72 $ 46,129
Total 1059 $ 326,609

4. Change from Prior Fiscal Year

Status
Change in Gross

Assmt / Lot
% Change Gross

Assmt / Lot
Platted $ 30 4.78%
Un-Platted $ 14 20.56%
Total

Platted Un-Platted Total Lots
196 384 580
221 258 479
417 642 1059

1.00 1.00
417 642 1059

39.38% 60.62%

GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE 30,432 46,853 77,285 24.12% Yes
INSURANCE 2,296 3,534 5,830 1.82% Yes

DEBT ADMINISTRATION 14,000 - 14,000 4.37% No
UTILITIES 75,900 - 75,900 23.69% No

PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT 147,420 - 147,420 46.01% No
Subtotal (Net) /[a] 270,048 50,387 320,435 100.0%

Early Payment Discount 11,741 2,191 13,932
County Charges

Total (Gross)
Share of Total Expenditures

11,741 2,191 13,932
293,530 54,768 348,299 [b]
84.28% 15.72% 100.00%

Total ERU 417.0 642.0 1,059.0 [c]
Total AR / ERU - GROSS $ 703.91 $ 85.31 $ 328.90 [b] / [c]
Total AR / ERU - NET $ 647.60 $ 78.49 $ 302.59 [a] / [c]



Page 3 of 11

STATEMENT 3
AVALON GROVESCDD

FY 2019 PROPOSED CONTRACT SUMMARY

FINANCIAL STATEMENT CATEGORY SERVICE PROVIDER (VENDOR)
ANNUAL CONTRACT

$ COMMENTS (SCOPE OF SERVICE)

DISTRICT MANAGEMENT SERVICES DPFG $32,000 Estimated at $4,000 per meeting, estimated at 8 meetings

DISTRICT ACCOUNTING SERVICES DPFG $0

BANK FEES Bank United $150

AUDITING SERVICES DMHB $2,500 Audit fees per engagement letter are as follows, $2,500 for FY 2017,
$2,600 for FY 2018 and $2,750 for FY 2019

REGULATORY AND PERMIT FEES State of Florida $175

LEGAL ADVERTISEMENTS Daily Commercial $4,000 Increase in budget in anticipation of a bond issuance

ENGINEERING SERVICES Heidt Design $12,000

LEGAL SERVICES Hopping Green & Sams $25,000 Amounts increased in anticipation of bond issuance

TECHNOLOGY &WEBSITE ADMINISTRATION Atlas Professional Services $960

MISCELLANEOUS $500

INSURANCE EGIS $5,830 Professional Liability is $2,651. General liability estimated at $3,200. Will
need to add property schedule as completed.

DISCLOSURE REPORT DPFG $5,000

ARBITRAGE REBATE $1,500 Increase in budget in anticipation of a bond issuance

TRUSTEE FEES $7,500 Increase in budget in anticipation of a bond issuance

UTILITIES $2,500 Estimated for lift stations, etc.

STREETLIGHTS $68,400 Streetlights for FY 2018 includes 70 poles. Estimated at $5,700 monthly
for purchase and install for 36 months

UTILITY CONTINGENCY $5,000 Estimated

LAKE & POND MAINTENANCE Lake &Werland Management $6,420 Lake management service including algae, border grass, and invasive plant
control

LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE $106,000 Based on estimate recevied from Rabdy Suggs

LANDSCAPE MISC. $5,000 Miscellaneous

WETLAND MITIGATION &MONITORING BioTech $14,000 Collector Road - $6,000. One time baseline setup-$3,600. Phase 1A-
$2,800 and One time baseline setup-$1,600

FIELD MANAGEMENT $6,000

FIELD CONTINGENCY $5,000

HARDSCAPE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE $5,000

BUILDOUT CONTINGENCY $0

Total $320,435



Page 4 of 11

AVALON GROVES CDD
FY 2019 PROPOSED BUDGET

SERIES 2017 ASSESSMENT AREA ONE

REVENUE
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS - ON-ROLL/OFF ROLL
CAPITAL INTEREST
INTEREST - INVESTMENT
FUND BALANCE FORWARD
LESS: DISCOUNT ASSESSMENTS

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENDITURES
COUNTY - ASSESSMENT COLLECTION FEES
INTEREST EXPENSE
05/01/19
11/01/19

PRINCIPAL RETIREMENT
05/01/19

BUDGET

$ 185,153
-
-
-

(7,715)
177,439

7,715

67,856
66,981

35,000
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 177,552

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (110)

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING -
FUND BALANCE - ENDING $ (110)

Table 1. Allocation of Maximum Annual Debt Service (MADS) to Lots (AA One)

Lot Width Units ERU Total ERU % ERU Annual Assmt
Annual

Assmt/Unit
50 580 1.00 580.00 100.00% 170,338 294

Total 580 580.00 100.00% 170,338

MADS Assmt. per ERU - net 294
MADS Assmt. per ERU - gross 319

Total revenue - gross 185,153



Page 5 of 11

AVALON GROVES CDD
$2,415,000 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS SERIES 2017 AREA ONE

Debt Service Requirement

Period Ending Principal /(a) Coupon Interest /(a) Debt Service Annual Dbt Srvc
Principal
Balance

4/6/2017 2,415,000
11/1/2017 5.000% 77,280.73 77,280.73 77,280.73 2,415,000
5/1/2018 5.000% 67,856.25 67,856.25 2,415,000

11/1/2018 5.000% 67,856.25 67,856.25 135,712.50 2,415,000
5/1/2019 35,000 5.000% 67,856.25 102,856.25 2,380,000

11/1/2019 5.000% 66,981.25 66,981.25 169,837.50 2,380,000
5/1/2020 35,000 5.000% 66,981.25 101,981.25 2,345,000

11/1/2020 5.000% 66,106.25 66,106.25 168,087.50 2,345,000
5/1/2021 35,000 5.000% 66,106.25 101,106.25 2,310,000

11/1/2021 5.000% 65,231.25 65,231.25 166,337.50 2,310,000
5/1/2022 40,000 5.000% 65,231.25 105,231.25 2,270,000

11/1/2022 5.000% 64,231.25 64,231.25 169,462.50 2,270,000
5/1/2023 40,000 5.000% 64,231.25 104,231.25 2,230,000

11/1/2023 5.000% 63,231.25 63,231.25 167,462.50 2,230,000
5/1/2024 45,000 5.000% 63,231.25 108,231.25 2,185,000

11/1/2024 5.000% 62,106.25 62,106.25 170,337.50 2,185,000
5/1/2025 45,000 5.000% 62,106.25 107,106.25 2,140,000

11/1/2025 5.000% 60,981.25 60,981.25 168,087.50 2,140,000
5/1/2026 45,000 5.000% 60,981.25 105,981.25 2,095,000

11/1/2026 5.000% 59,856.25 59,856.25 165,837.50 2,095,000
5/1/2027 50,000 5.000% 59,856.25 109,856.25 2,045,000

11/1/2027 5.000% 58,606.25 58,606.25 168,462.50 2,045,000
5/1/2028 50,000 5.000% 58,606.25 108,606.25 1,995,000

11/1/2028 5.000% 57,356.25 57,356.25 165,962.50 1,995,000
5/1/2029 55,000 5.750% 57,356.25 112,356.25 1,940,000

11/1/2029 5.750% 55,775.00 55,775.00 168,131.25 1,940,000
5/1/2030 60,000 5.750% 55,775.00 115,775.00 1,880,000

11/1/2030 5.750% 54,050.00 54,050.00 169,825.00 1,880,000
5/1/2031 60,000 5.750% 54,050.00 114,050.00 1,820,000

11/1/2031 5.750% 52,325.00 52,325.00 166,375.00 1,820,000
5/1/2032 65,000 5.750% 52,325.00 117,325.00 1,755,000

11/1/2032 5.750% 50,456.25 50,456.25 167,781.25 1,755,000
5/1/2033 70,000 5.750% 50,456.25 120,456.25 1,685,000

11/1/2033 5.750% 48,443.75 48,443.75 168,900.00 1,685,000
5/1/2034 75,000 5.750% 48,443.75 123,443.75 1,610,000

11/1/2034 5.750% 46,287.50 46,287.50 169,731.25 1,610,000
5/1/2035 80,000 5.750% 46,287.50 126,287.50 1,530,000

11/1/2035 5.750% 43,987.50 43,987.50 170,275.00 1,530,000
5/1/2036 80,000 5.750% 43,987.50 123,987.50 1,450,000

11/1/2036 5.750% 41,687.50 41,687.50 165,675.00 1,450,000
5/1/2037 85,000 5.750% 41,687.50 126,687.50 1,365,000

11/1/2037 5.750% 39,243.75 39,243.75 165,931.25 1,365,000
5/1/2038 90,000 5.750% 39,243.75 129,243.75 1,275,000

11/1/2038 5.750% 36,656.25 36,656.25 165,900.00 1,275,000
5/1/2039 95,000 5.750% 36,656.25 131,656.25 1,180,000

11/1/2039 5.750% 33,925.00 33,925.00 165,581.25 1,180,000



Page 6 of 11

AVALON GROVES CDD
$2,415,000 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS SERIES 2017 AREA ONE

Debt Service Requirement

Period Ending Principal /(a) Coupon Interest /(a) Debt Service Annual Dbt Srvc
Principal
Balance

5/1/2040 105,000 5.750% 33,925.00 138,925.00 1,075,000
11/1/2040 5.750% 30,906.25 30,906.25 169,831.25 1,075,000
5/1/2041 110,000 5.750% 30,906.25 140,906.25 965,000

11/1/2041 5.750% 27,743.75 27,743.75 168,650.00 965,000
5/1/2042 115,000 5.750% 27,743.75 142,743.75 850,000

11/1/2042 5.750% 24,437.50 24,437.50 167,181.25 850,000
5/1/2043 120,000 5.750% 24,437.50 144,437.50 730,000

11/1/2043 5.750% 20,987.50 20,987.50 165,425.00 730,000
5/1/2044 130,000 5.750% 20,987.50 150,987.50 600,000

11/1/2044 5.750% 17,250.00 17,250.00 168,237.50 600,000
5/1/2045 135,000 5.750% 17,250.00 152,250.00 465,000

11/1/2045 5.750% 13,368.75 13,368.75 165,618.75 465,000
5/1/2046 145,000 5.750% 13,368.75 158,368.75 320,000

11/1/2046 5.750% 9,200.00 9,200.00 167,568.75 320,000
5/1/2047 155,000 5.750% 9,200.00 164,200.00 165,000

11/1/2047 5.750% 4,743.75 4,743.75 168,943.75 165,000
5/1/2048 165,000 5.750% 4,743.75 169,743.75 -

Total $2,415,000.00 2,833,174.48 5,248,174.48 5,078,430.73

Max annual ds: $170,337.50
Footnote:
(a) Data herein for the CDD's budgetary process purposes only.



Page 7 of 11

AVALON GROVES CDD
FY 2019 PROPOSED BUDGET

SERIES 2017A-1 ASSESSMENT AREA TWO

REVENUE
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS - ON-ROLL/OFF ROLL
CAPITAL INTEREST
INTEREST - INVESTMENT
FUND BALANCE FORWARD
LESS: DISCOUNT ASSESSMENTS

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENDITURES
COUNTY - ASSESSMENT COLLECTION FEES
INTEREST EXPENSE
05/01/19
11/01/19

PRINCIPAL RETIREMENT
05/01/19

BUDGET

$ 559,241
-
-
-

(23,302)
535,939

23,302

212,684
210,131

95,000
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 541,117

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (5,180)

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING -
FUND BALANCE - ENDING $ (5,180)

Table 1. Allocation of Maximum Annual Debt Service (MADS) to Lots (2017A-1)

Lot Width Units ERU Annual Assmt
Annual

Assmt/Unit
40' 83 0.90 81,276 979
50' 294 1.00 316,682 1,077
60' 102 1.20 119,857 1,175
Total 479 517,816



Page 8 of 11

AVALON GROVES CDD
$7,215,000 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS SERIES 2017A-1 AREA TWO

Debt Service Requirement

Period Ending Principal /(a) Coupon Interest /(a) Debt Service Annual Dbt Srvc Principal Balance

4/6/2017 7,215,000
11/1/2017 5.375% 242,224 242,224 242,224 7,215,000
5/1/2018 5.375% 212,684 212,684 7,215,000

11/1/2018 5.375% 212,684 212,684 425,369 7,215,000
5/1/2019 95,000 5.375% 212,684 307,684 7,120,000

11/1/2019 5.375% 210,131 210,131 517,816 7,120,000
5/1/2020 100,000 5.375% 210,131 310,131 7,020,000

11/1/2020 5.375% 207,444 207,444 517,575 7,020,000
5/1/2021 105,000 5.375% 207,444 312,444 6,915,000

11/1/2021 5.375% 204,622 204,622 517,066 6,915,000
5/1/2022 110,000 5.375% 204,622 314,622 6,805,000

11/1/2022 5.375% 201,666 201,666 516,288 6,805,000
5/1/2023 115,000 5.375% 201,666 316,666 6,690,000

11/1/2023 5.375% 198,575 198,575 515,241 6,690,000
5/1/2024 120,000 5.375% 198,575 318,575 6,570,000

11/1/2024 5.375% 195,350 195,350 513,925 6,570,000
5/1/2025 130,000 5.375% 195,350 325,350 6,440,000

11/1/2025 5.375% 191,856 191,856 517,206 6,440,000
5/1/2026 135,000 5.375% 191,856 326,856 6,305,000

11/1/2026 5.375% 188,228 188,228 515,084 6,305,000
5/1/2027 145,000 5.375% 188,228 333,228 6,160,000

11/1/2027 5.375% 184,331 184,331 517,559 6,160,000
5/1/2028 150,000 5.375% 184,331 334,331 6,010,000

11/1/2028 5.375% 180,300 180,300 514,631 6,010,000
5/1/2029 160,000 6.000% 180,300 340,300 5,850,000

11/1/2029 6.000% 175,500 175,500 515,800 5,850,000
5/1/2030 170,000 6.000% 175,500 345,500 5,680,000

11/1/2030 6.000% 170,400 170,400 515,900 5,680,000
5/1/2031 180,000 6.000% 170,400 350,400 5,500,000

11/1/2031 6.000% 165,000 165,000 515,400 5,500,000
5/1/2032 190,000 6.000% 165,000 355,000 5,310,000

11/1/2032 6.000% 159,300 159,300 514,300 5,310,000
5/1/2033 205,000 6.000% 159,300 364,300 5,105,000

11/1/2033 6.000% 153,150 153,150 517,450 5,105,000
5/1/2034 215,000 6.000% 153,150 368,150 4,890,000

11/1/2034 6.000% 146,700 146,700 514,850 4,890,000
5/1/2035 230,000 6.000% 146,700 376,700 4,660,000

11/1/2035 6.000% 139,800 139,800 516,500 4,660,000
5/1/2036 245,000 6.000% 139,800 384,800 4,415,000

11/1/2036 6.000% 132,450 132,450 517,250 4,415,000
5/1/2037 260,000 6.000% 132,450 392,450 4,155,000

11/1/2037 6.000% 124,650 124,650 517,100 4,155,000
5/1/2038 275,000 6.000% 124,650 399,650 3,880,000

11/1/2038 6.000% 116,400 116,400 516,050 3,880,000
5/1/2039 290,000 6.000% 116,400 406,400 3,590,000

11/1/2039 6.000% 107,700 107,700 514,100 3,590,000
5/1/2040 310,000 6.000% 107,700 417,700 3,280,000

11/1/2040 6.000% 98,400 98,400 516,100 3,280,000
5/1/2041 330,000 6.000% 98,400 428,400 2,950,000



Page 9 of 11

AVALON GROVES CDD
$7,215,000 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS SERIES 2017A-1 AREA TWO

Debt Service Requirement

Period Ending Principal /(a) Coupon Interest /(a) Debt Service Annual Dbt Srvc Principal Balance
11/1/2041 6.000% 88,500 88,500 516,900 2,950,000
5/1/2042 350,000 6.000% 88,500 438,500 2,600,000

11/1/2042 6.000% 78,000 78,000 516,500 2,600,000
5/1/2043 370,000 6.000% 78,000 448,000 2,230,000

11/1/2043 6.000% 66,900 66,900 514,900 2,230,000
5/1/2044 395,000 6.000% 66,900 461,900 1,835,000

11/1/2044 6.000% 55,050 55,050 516,950 1,835,000
5/1/2045 420,000 6.000% 55,050 475,050 1,415,000

11/1/2045 6.000% 42,450 42,450 517,500 1,415,000
5/1/2046 445,000 6.000% 42,450 487,450 970,000

11/1/2046 6.000% 29,100 29,100 516,550 970,000
5/1/2047 470,000 6.000% 29,100 499,100 500,000

11/1/2047 6.000% 15,000 15,000 514,100 500,000
5/1/2048 500,000 6.000% 15,000 515,000 -

Total $7,215,000.00 8,934,183 16,149,183 15,634,183

Max annual ds: $517,815.63
Footnote:
(a) Data herein for the CDD's budgetary process purposes only.



Page 10 of 11

AVALON GROVES CDD
FY 2019 PROPOSED BUDGET

SERIES 2017A-2 ASSESSMENT AREA TWO

REVENUE
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS - ON-ROLL/OFF ROLL
CAPITAL INTEREST
INTEREST - INVESTMENT
FUND BALANCE FORWARD
LESS: DISCOUNT ASSESSMENTS

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENDITURES
COUNTY - ASSESSMENT COLLECTION FEES
INTEREST EXPENSE
05/01/19
11/01/19

PRINCIPAL RETIREMENT
05/01/19

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING
FUND BALANCE - ENDING

Table 1. Allocation of Maximum Annual Debt Service (MADS) to Lots (2017A-2)

Lot Width Units ERU Total ERU % ERU Annual Assmt
Annual

Assmt/Unit
40 53 0.90 47.70 20.86% 46,428 876
50 103 1.00 103.00 45.04% 100,253 973
60 65 1.20 78.00 34.11% 75,920 1,168

Total 221 228.70 100.00% 222,600

MADS Assmt. per ERU - net 973
MADS Assmt. per ERU - gross 1,058

Total revenue - gross 241,958

$ 241,958
-
-
-

(10,082)

10,082

111,300
111,300

-

(810)

-
(810)$

232,682

231,876

BUDGET



Page 11 of 11

AVALON GROVES CDD
$4,400,000 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS SERIES 2017A-2 AREA TWO

Debt Service Requirement

Period Ending Principal /(a)(b) Coupon Interest /(a) Debt Service Annual Dbt Srvc Principal Balance

4/6/2017 4,400,000
11/1/2017 275,000 6.000% 150,333 425,333 425,333 4,125,000
5/1/2018 415,000 6.000% 123,750 538,750 3,710,000

11/1/2018 6.000% 111,300 111,300 650,050 3,710,000
5/1/2019 6.000% 111,300 111,300 3,710,000

11/1/2019 6.000% 111,300 111,300 222,600 3,710,000
5/1/2020 6.000% 111,300 111,300 3,710,000

11/1/2020 6.000% 111,300 111,300 222,600 3,710,000
5/1/2021 6.000% 111,300 111,300 3,710,000

11/1/2021 6.000% 111,300 111,300 222,600 3,710,000
5/1/2022 6.000% 111,300 111,300 3,710,000

11/1/2022 6.000% 111,300 111,300 222,600 3,710,000
5/1/2023 6.000% 111,300 111,300 3,710,000

11/1/2023 6.000% 111,300 111,300 222,600 3,710,000
5/1/2024 6.000% 111,300 111,300 3,710,000

11/1/2024 6.000% 111,300 111,300 222,600 3,710,000
5/1/2025 6.000% 111,300 111,300 3,710,000

11/1/2025 6.000% 111,300 111,300 222,600 3,710,000
5/1/2026 6.000% 111,300 111,300 3,710,000

11/1/2026 6.000% 111,300 111,300 222,600 3,710,000
5/1/2027 6.000% 111,300 111,300 3,710,000

11/1/2027 6.000% 111,300 111,300 222,600 3,710,000
5/1/2028 6.000% 111,300 111,300 3,710,000

11/1/2028 6.000% 111,300 111,300 222,600 3,710,000
5/1/2029 3,710,000 6.000% 111,300 3,821,300 3,821,300 -

Total $4,400,000 2,722,683 7,122,683 7,122,683

Max annual ds: $222,600
Footnote:
(a) Data herein for the CDD's budgetary process purposesonly.
(b) Extraordinary Manditory Redemption of $275,000 made on2/1/2018



 
 

FY 2019 DEFICIT FUNDING AGREEMENT  
 

THIS FY 2019 DEFICIT FUNDING AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and 
entered into to be effective the 1st day of October, 2018, by and between: 
 

Avalon Groves Community Development District, a local unit of special-
purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, and 
located in Lake County, Florida (“District”), and 
 
VK Avalon Groves, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, the primary 
developer of lands within the boundary of the District, and whose address is 701 
South Olive Ave., Suite 104, West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 (“Developer”). 

 
RECITALS 

 
 WHEREAS, the District was established by ordinance of the Board of County Commissioners of 
Lake County, Florida, for the purpose of planning, financing, constructing, operating and/or maintaining 
certain infrastructure; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District, pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, is authorized to levy such 
taxes, special assessments, fees and other charges as may be necessary in furtherance of the District's 
activities and services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of the District has adopted the District’s 
operations and maintenance budget (“O&M Budget”) for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2019 
(“FY 2019”) and has levied special assessments (“O&M Assessments”) to fund a portion of the O&M 
Budget; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in connection with the adoption of the O&M Budget and the levy of the O&M 
Assessments, and in consideration for the District not levying additional O&M Assessments, the 
Developer has agreed to pay the O&M Assessments levied on its properties, and additionally to fund any 
portion (“O&M Deficit”) of the O&M Budget needed by the District above and beyond the amount of the 
O&M Assessments actually levied;  
    

NOW, THEREFORE, based upon good and valuable consideration and the mutual covenants of 
the parties, the receipt of which and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as 
follows: 
 

1. RECITALS.  The recitals so stated are true and correct and by this reference are 
incorporated into and form a material part of this Agreement.  

 
2.  FUNDING OBLIGATION.  The Developer agrees to make available to the District any 

monies necessary to fund any O&M Deficit for FY 2019, within thirty (30) days of written request by the 
District.  The funds shall be placed in the District's general checking account and used to fund the actual 
administrative and operations expenses of the District’s O&M Budget.  The Developer agrees to fund any 
O&M Deficit for actual expenses of the District and up to the total amount of the O&M Budget; provided, 
however, that the Developer shall not be responsible for any O&M Deficit resulting from amendments to 
the O&M Budget, unless the Developer approves of such amendments.  The Developer’s payment of 
funds pursuant to this Agreement in no way affects Developer’s obligation to pay O&M Assessments 
levied on lands it owns within the District.    



 
 

 
To the extent permitted by law, and subject to completing any necessary lawful process, the 

District may elect in its sole discretion to levy and impose special assessments as part of the next annual 
budget cycle and thereby reimburse the Developer for any funds provided by the Developer pursuant to 
this Agreement.  Any such reimbursement shall be made within 30 days after the District’s receipt of the 
special assessment monies.  In the event that the District does not elect as part of its next annual budget 
cycle to reimburse the Developer for any payments made hereunder, then the District shall not have any 
reimbursement obligation under this Agreement whatsoever. 

 
3. AMENDMENT.  This instrument shall constitute the final and complete expression of 

the agreement between the parties relating to the subject matter of this Agreement.  Amendments to and 
waivers of the provisions contained in this Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing 
which is executed by both of the parties hereto. 

 
4. AUTHORITY.  The execution of this Agreement has been duly authorized by the 

appropriate body or official of all parties hereto, each party has complied with all the requirements of law, 
and each party has full power and authority to comply with the terms and provisions of this instrument. 

 
5. ASSIGNMENT.  This Agreement may not be assigned, in whole or in part, by either 

party except upon the written consent of the other.  Any purported assignment without such consent shall 
be void. 

 
6. DEFAULT.  A default by either party under this Agreement shall entitle the other to all 

remedies available at law or in equity, which shall include, but not be limited to, the right of damages, 
injunctive relief and specific performance.    
 

7. ATTORNEY’S FEES.  In the event that either party is required to enforce this 
Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the parties agree that the prevailing party shall be 
entitled to recover from the other all costs incurred, including reasonable attorneys' fees and costs for 
trial, alternative dispute resolution, or appellate proceedings. 

 
8. BENEFICIARIES.  This Agreement is solely for the benefit of the formal parties herein 

and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason hereof, to or for the benefit of any third 
party not a formal party hereto.  Nothing in this Agreement expressed or implied is intended or shall be 
construed to confer upon any person or corporation other than the parties hereto any right, remedy or 
claim under or by reason of this Agreement or any provisions or conditions hereof; and all of the 
provisions, representations, covenants and conditions herein contained shall inure to the sole benefit of 
and shall be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective representatives, successors and assigns.   

 
9. APPLICABLE LAW; VENUE.  This Agreement and the provisions contained herein 

shall be construed, interpreted and controlled according to the laws of the State of Florida.  Venue for any 
action under this Agreement shall be in a state circuit court of competent jurisdiction in and for Lake 
County, Florida. 

 
10. ARM’S LENGTH.  This Agreement has been negotiated fully between the parties as an 

arm's length transaction.  The parties participated fully in the preparation of this Agreement with the 
assistance of their respective counsel.  In the case of a dispute concerning the interpretation of any 
provision of this Agreement, the parties are each deemed to have drafted, chosen and selected the 
language, and the doubtful language will not be interpreted or construed against any party. 

 



 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties execute this Agreement the day and year first written 
above. 
 
      AVALON GROVES COMMUNITY 
      DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      By:  _____________________________________ 
      Its: ______________________________________ 
  

VK AVALON GROVES, LLC 
 
      By:_____________________________________ 
      Name: __________________________________ 
      Title: ___________________________________ 
 
EXHIBIT A:  O&M Budget with Assessment Schedule 

 
 
 

 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 7 



 
RESOLUTION 2018-09 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE AVALON 
GROVES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT MAKING A 
DETERMINATION OF BENEFIT AND IMPOSING SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018/2019; PROVIDING FOR THE 
COLLECTION AND ENFORCEMENT OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS, 
INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO PENALTIES AND INTEREST 
THEREON; CERTIFYING AN ASSESSMENT ROLL; PROVIDING FOR 
AMENDMENTS TO THE ASSESSMENT ROLL; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Avalon Groves Community Development District (“District”) is a local 
unit of special-purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, for the 
purpose of providing, operating and maintaining infrastructure improvements, facilities and 
services to the lands within the District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District is located in Lake County, Florida (“County”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has constructed or acquired various infrastructure 
improvements and provides certain services in accordance with the District’s adopted capital 
improvement plan and Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of the District hereby determines to 
undertake various operations and maintenance and other activities described in the District’s 
budget (“Adopted Budget”) for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2018 and ending September 
30, 2019 (“Fiscal Year 2018/2019”), attached hereto as Exhibit “A;” and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District must obtain sufficient funds to provide for the operation and 
maintenance of the services and facilities provided by the District as described in the Adopted 
Budget; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the provision of such services, facilities, and operations is a benefit to lands 
within the District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, provides that the District may impose 
special assessments on benefitted lands within the District; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the District to proceed with the imposition of the 
special assessments for operations and maintenance in the amount set forth in the Adopted 
Budget; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District has previously levied an assessment for debt service, which the 

District desires to collect for Fiscal Year 2018/2019; and 
 



 WHEREAS, Chapter 197, Florida Statutes, provides a mechanism pursuant to which 
such special assessments may be placed on the tax roll and collected by the local tax collector 
(“Uniform Method”), and the District has previously authorized the use of the Uniform Method 
by, among other things, entering into agreements with the Property Appraiser and Tax Collector 
of the County for that purpose; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the District to adopt the assessment roll 
(“Assessment Roll”) attached to this Resolution as Exhibit “B,” and to certify the portion of the 
Assessment Roll related to certain developed property (“Tax Roll Property”) to the County Tax 
Collector pursuant to the Uniform Method and to directly collect the portion of the Assessment 
Roll relating to the remaining property (“Direct Collect Property”), all as set forth in Exhibit 
“B;” and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the District to permit the District Manager to 
amend the Assessment Roll adopted herein, including that portion certified to the County Tax 
Collector by this Resolution, as the Property Appraiser updates the property roll for the County, 
for such time as authorized by Florida law. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE AVLON GROVES COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 
 SECTION 1. BENEFIT & ALLOCATION FINDINGS.  The provision of the services, 
facilities, and operations as described in Exhibit “A” confers a special and peculiar benefit to the 
lands within the District, which benefit exceeds or equals the cost of the assessments. The 
allocation of the assessments to the specially benefitted lands is shown in Exhibits “A” and 
“B,” and is hereby found to be fair and reasonable. 
 
 SECTION 2. ASSESSMENT IMPOSITION.  Pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, and 
using the procedures authorized by Florida law for the levy and collection of special 
assessments, a special assessment for operation and maintenance is hereby imposed and levied 
on benefitted lands within the District and in accordance with Exhibits “A” and “B.”  The lien 
of the special assessments for operations and maintenance imposed and levied by this Resolution 
shall be effective upon passage of this Resolution.  Moreover, pursuant to Section 197.3632(4), 
Florida Statutes, the lien amount shall serve as the “maximum rate” authorized by law for 
operation and maintenance assessments. 
 
 SECTION 3. COLLECTION AND ENFORCEMENT; PENALTIES; INTEREST.   
 

A. Tax Roll Assessments.  The operations and maintenance special assessments and 
previously levied debt service special assessments imposed on the Tax Roll Property 
shall be collected at the same time and in the same manner as County taxes in 
accordance with the Uniform Method, as set forth in Exhibits “A” and “B.”   
 

A. Direct Bill Assessments.  The operations and maintenance special assessments and 
previously levied debt service special assessments imposed on the Direct Collect 



Property, as well as debt service special assessments imposed for the Special 
Assessment Bonds, Series 2017A-2 (Assessment Area Two Project), shall be 
collected directly by the District in accordance with Florida law, as set forth in 
Exhibits “A” and “B.”  Assessments directly collected by the District are due 
according to the following schedule:   

 
• Debt service assessments – 60% (Series 2017 and 2017A-1) and 50% (Series 

2017A-2) due no later than April 15, 2019, and 40% (Series 2017 and 2017A-
1) and 50% (Series 2017A-2) due no later than October 15, 2019; and 

• Operations and maintenance assessments – 25% due on each of October 1, 
2018, January 2, 2019, April 1, 2019, and July 1, 2019. 

 
In the event that an assessment payment is not made in accordance with the schedule 
stated above, the whole assessment – including any remaining partial, deferred 
payments for Fiscal Year 2018/2019, shall immediately become due and payable; 
shall accrue interest, penalties in the amount of one percent (1%) per month, and all 
costs of collection and enforcement; and shall either be enforced pursuant to a 
foreclosure action, or, at the District’s sole discretion, collected pursuant to the 
Uniform Method on a future tax bill, which amount may include penalties, interest, 
and costs of collection and enforcement. Any prejudgment interest on delinquent 
assessments shall accrue at the rate of any bonds secured by the assessments, or at the 
statutory prejudgment interest rate, as applicable.  In the event an assessment subject 
to direct collection by the District shall be delinquent, the District Manager and 
District Counsel, without further authorization by the Board, may initiate foreclosure 
proceedings pursuant to Chapter 170, Florida Statutes, or other applicable law to 
collect and enforce the whole assessment, as set forth herein.   
 

B. Future Collection Methods.  The decision to collect special assessments by any 
particular method – e.g., on the tax roll or by direct bill – does not mean that such 
method will be used to collect special assessments in future years, and the District 
reserves the right in its sole discretion to select collection methods in any given year, 
regardless of past practices.   

 
 SECTION 4. ASSESSMENT ROLL.  The Assessment Roll, attached to this Resolution as 
Exhibit “B,” is hereby certified for collection.  That portion of the Assessment Roll which 
includes the Tax Roll Property is hereby certified to the County Tax Collector and shall be 
collected by the County Tax Collector in the same manner and time as County taxes.  The 
proceeds therefrom shall be paid to the District. 
 
 SECTION 5. ASSESSMENT ROLL AMENDMENT.  The District Manager shall keep 
apprised of all updates made to the County property roll by the Property Appraiser after the date 
of this Resolution, and shall amend the Assessment Roll in accordance with any such updates, 
for such time as authorized by Florida law, to the County property roll.  After any amendment of 
the Assessment Roll, the District Manager shall file the updates in the District records. 
 



 SECTION 6.  SEVERABILITY.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more 
provisions of this Resolution shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining 
portions of this Resolution, or any part thereof. 
 
 SECTION 7. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall take effect upon the passage and 
adoption of this Resolution by the Board. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 27th  day of AUGUST, 2018. 
 
ATTEST:      AVALON GROVES COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
_____________________________   By:       
Secretary / Assistant Secretary    
       Its:       
 
 
Exhibit A: Budget 
Exhibit B: Assessment Roll (Uniform Method) 

Assessment Roll (Direct Collect) 
 



Page 1 of 11

REVENUE:
SPECIAL ASSESEMENTS (LANDOWNER OFF-ROLL)
DEVELOPER FUNDING
TEMPORATY DEPOSIT ACCOUNT

TOTAL REVENUE:

EXPENDITURES:
GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE:
DISTRICT MANAGEMENT SERVICES
DISTRICT ACCOUNTING SERVICES
BANK FEES
AUDITING
REGULATORY AND PERMIT FEES
LEGAL ADVERTISEMENTS
ENGINEERING SERVICES
LEGAL SERVICES
TECHNOLOGY & WEBSITE ADMIN.
MISCELLANEOUS (appraisal, mailing, etc.)
TOTAL GENERAL ADMIN.

INSURANCE:
INSURANCE
TOTAL INSURANCE

DEBT SERVICE ADMIN. :
DISCLOSURE REPORT
ARBITRAGE REBATE
TRUSTEE FEES
TOTAL DEBT SERVICE ADMIN.

UTILITIES:
UTILITIES-ELECTRICITY
STREETLIGHTS
UTILITY CONTINGENCY
TOTAL UTILITIES:

PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT:
LAKE & POND MAINTENANCE
LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE(Ponds, Ph 1A & Serenoa Blvd.)
LANDSCAPE - MISC.
WETLAND MITIGATION & MONITORING
FIELD MANAGEMENT
FIELD CONTINGENCY
HARDSCAPE REPAIRS & MAINT.
BUILDOUT CONTINGENCY
TOTAL PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT

TOTAL EXPENDITURES:
EXCESS OVER (UNDER) REVENUES:

STATEMENT 1

AVALON GROVES

GENERAL FUND

FY 2019 PROPOSED BUDGET

FY 2016 FY 2017 2018 2018 2019 VARIANCE
ACTUAL ACTUAL ADOPTED 3/31/2018 PROPOSED 2018-2019

$ - $ - $ 300,474 $ 92,673 $ 320,435 $ 19,961
19,617 149,087 43,036 - $ -

2,481
19,617 149,087 300,474 138,190 320,435 19,961

8,000 44,000 8,000 20,000 32,000 24,000
- - 24,000 - - (24,000)
- 28 150 - 150 -
- - 3,500 - 2,500 (1,000)

100 175 175 175 175 -
496 6,037 750 889 4,000 3,250

- 4,975 10,000 1,719 12,000 2,000
10,844 79,902 16,000 28,978 25,000 9,000

177 960 960 580 960 -
- 5,600 500 3,104 500 -

19,617 141,677 64,035 55,446 77,285 13,250

- 2,410 5,851 5,300 5,830 (21)
- 2,410 5,851 5,300 5,830 (21)

- 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 -
- - 700 - 1,500 800
- - 3,800 7,000 7,500 3,700
- 5,000 9,500 12,000 14,000 4,500

- - 2,500 - 2,500 -
- - 62,454 - 68,400 5,946
- - 5,000 - 5,000 -
- - 2,500 - 75,900 5,946

- - 20,400 1,605 6,420 (13,980)
- - 95,734 7,980 106,000 10,266
- - 5,000 - 5,000 -
- - 14,000 2,800 14,000 -
- - 6,000 - 6,000 -
- - 5,000 - 5,000 -
- - 5,000 - 5,000 -
- - - - - -
- - 151,134 12,385 147,420 (3,714)

19,617 149,087 233,020 85,131 320,435 19,961
- - 67,454 53,059 - -



Page 2 of 11

STATEMENT 2
AVALON GROVES

FY 2019 PROPOSED BUDGET
GENERAL FUND (O&M) ASSESSMENT ALLOCATION

1. ERU Assignment and Calculation
Phase Planned Lots ERU / Lots Total ERU
AA 1 580 1.00 580
AA 2 479 1.00 479
Total 1059 1059

1a. ERU Allocation Driver based on Development Status of Lots

Assessment Area One
Assessment Area Two

Total Lots
Assigned ERU

Total Assigned ERU
% Allocation per share of ERU

2. O&M Assessment Requirement ("AR") - IF all assessments are ON Roll

Expenditures Platted Lots Un-Platted Lots
Grand Total

/(1)
Share of

Total
Benefit to Un-
Platted /(2)

2a. Allocation of O&M Assessment: FY 2019

Status Lots ERU / Lot Net Assmt / Lot
Gross Assmt

/ Lot
Total Gross

Assmt
Platted 417 1.00 $ 648 $ 704 $ 293,530
Un-Platted 642 1.00 $ 78 $ 85 $ 54,769
Total 1059 $ 348,299

3. Allocation of O&M Assessment: FY 2018

Status Lots ERU / Lot Net Assmt / Lot
Gross Assmt

/ Lot
Total Gross

Assmt
Platted 416 1.00 $ 620 $ 674 $ 280,480
Un-Platted 643 1.00 $ 66 $ 72 $ 46,129
Total 1059 $ 326,609

4. Change from Prior Fiscal Year

Status
Change in Gross

Assmt / Lot
% Change Gross

Assmt / Lot
Platted $ 30 4.78%
Un-Platted $ 14 20.56%
Total

Platted Un-Platted Total Lots
196 384 580
221 258 479
417 642 1059

1.00 1.00
417 642 1059

39.38% 60.62%

GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE 30,432 46,853 77,285 24.12% Yes
INSURANCE 2,296 3,534 5,830 1.82% Yes

DEBT ADMINISTRATION 14,000 - 14,000 4.37% No
UTILITIES 75,900 - 75,900 23.69% No

PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT 147,420 - 147,420 46.01% No
Subtotal (Net) /[a] 270,048 50,387 320,435 100.0%

Early Payment Discount 11,741 2,191 13,932
County Charges

Total (Gross)
Share of Total Expenditures

11,741 2,191 13,932
293,530 54,768 348,299 [b]
84.28% 15.72% 100.00%

Total ERU 417.0 642.0 1,059.0 [c]
Total AR / ERU - GROSS $ 703.91 $ 85.31 $ 328.90 [b] / [c]
Total AR / ERU - NET $ 647.60 $ 78.49 $ 302.59 [a] / [c]



Page 3 of 11

STATEMENT 3
AVALON GROVESCDD

FY 2019 PROPOSED CONTRACT SUMMARY

FINANCIAL STATEMENT CATEGORY SERVICE PROVIDER (VENDOR)
ANNUAL CONTRACT

$ COMMENTS (SCOPE OF SERVICE)

DISTRICT MANAGEMENT SERVICES DPFG $32,000 Estimated at $4,000 per meeting, estimated at 8 meetings

DISTRICT ACCOUNTING SERVICES DPFG $0

BANK FEES Bank United $150

AUDITING SERVICES DMHB $2,500 Audit fees per engagement letter are as follows, $2,500 for FY 2017,
$2,600 for FY 2018 and $2,750 for FY 2019

REGULATORY AND PERMIT FEES State of Florida $175

LEGAL ADVERTISEMENTS Daily Commercial $4,000 Increase in budget in anticipation of a bond issuance

ENGINEERING SERVICES Heidt Design $12,000

LEGAL SERVICES Hopping Green & Sams $25,000 Amounts increased in anticipation of bond issuance

TECHNOLOGY &WEBSITE ADMINISTRATION Atlas Professional Services $960

MISCELLANEOUS $500

INSURANCE EGIS $5,830 Professional Liability is $2,651. General liability estimated at $3,200. Will
need to add property schedule as completed.

DISCLOSURE REPORT DPFG $5,000

ARBITRAGE REBATE $1,500 Increase in budget in anticipation of a bond issuance

TRUSTEE FEES $7,500 Increase in budget in anticipation of a bond issuance

UTILITIES $2,500 Estimated for lift stations, etc.

STREETLIGHTS $68,400 Streetlights for FY 2018 includes 70 poles. Estimated at $5,700 monthly
for purchase and install for 36 months

UTILITY CONTINGENCY $5,000 Estimated

LAKE & POND MAINTENANCE Lake &Werland Management $6,420 Lake management service including algae, border grass, and invasive plant
control

LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE $106,000 Based on estimate recevied from Rabdy Suggs

LANDSCAPE MISC. $5,000 Miscellaneous

WETLAND MITIGATION &MONITORING BioTech $14,000 Collector Road - $6,000. One time baseline setup-$3,600. Phase 1A-
$2,800 and One time baseline setup-$1,600

FIELD MANAGEMENT $6,000

FIELD CONTINGENCY $5,000

HARDSCAPE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE $5,000

BUILDOUT CONTINGENCY $0

Total $320,435



Page 4 of 11

AVALON GROVES CDD
FY 2019 PROPOSED BUDGET

SERIES 2017 ASSESSMENT AREA ONE

REVENUE
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS - ON-ROLL/OFF ROLL
CAPITAL INTEREST
INTEREST - INVESTMENT
FUND BALANCE FORWARD
LESS: DISCOUNT ASSESSMENTS

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENDITURES
COUNTY - ASSESSMENT COLLECTION FEES
INTEREST EXPENSE
05/01/19
11/01/19

PRINCIPAL RETIREMENT
05/01/19

BUDGET

$ 185,153
-
-
-

(7,715)
177,439

7,715

67,856
66,981

35,000
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 177,552

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (110)

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING -
FUND BALANCE - ENDING $ (110)

Table 1. Allocation of Maximum Annual Debt Service (MADS) to Lots (AA One)

Lot Width Units ERU Total ERU % ERU Annual Assmt
Annual

Assmt/Unit
50 580 1.00 580.00 100.00% 170,338 294

Total 580 580.00 100.00% 170,338

MADS Assmt. per ERU - net 294
MADS Assmt. per ERU - gross 319

Total revenue - gross 185,153



Page 5 of 11

AVALON GROVES CDD
$2,415,000 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS SERIES 2017 AREA ONE

Debt Service Requirement

Period Ending Principal /(a) Coupon Interest /(a) Debt Service Annual Dbt Srvc
Principal
Balance

4/6/2017 2,415,000
11/1/2017 5.000% 77,280.73 77,280.73 77,280.73 2,415,000
5/1/2018 5.000% 67,856.25 67,856.25 2,415,000

11/1/2018 5.000% 67,856.25 67,856.25 135,712.50 2,415,000
5/1/2019 35,000 5.000% 67,856.25 102,856.25 2,380,000

11/1/2019 5.000% 66,981.25 66,981.25 169,837.50 2,380,000
5/1/2020 35,000 5.000% 66,981.25 101,981.25 2,345,000

11/1/2020 5.000% 66,106.25 66,106.25 168,087.50 2,345,000
5/1/2021 35,000 5.000% 66,106.25 101,106.25 2,310,000

11/1/2021 5.000% 65,231.25 65,231.25 166,337.50 2,310,000
5/1/2022 40,000 5.000% 65,231.25 105,231.25 2,270,000

11/1/2022 5.000% 64,231.25 64,231.25 169,462.50 2,270,000
5/1/2023 40,000 5.000% 64,231.25 104,231.25 2,230,000

11/1/2023 5.000% 63,231.25 63,231.25 167,462.50 2,230,000
5/1/2024 45,000 5.000% 63,231.25 108,231.25 2,185,000

11/1/2024 5.000% 62,106.25 62,106.25 170,337.50 2,185,000
5/1/2025 45,000 5.000% 62,106.25 107,106.25 2,140,000

11/1/2025 5.000% 60,981.25 60,981.25 168,087.50 2,140,000
5/1/2026 45,000 5.000% 60,981.25 105,981.25 2,095,000

11/1/2026 5.000% 59,856.25 59,856.25 165,837.50 2,095,000
5/1/2027 50,000 5.000% 59,856.25 109,856.25 2,045,000

11/1/2027 5.000% 58,606.25 58,606.25 168,462.50 2,045,000
5/1/2028 50,000 5.000% 58,606.25 108,606.25 1,995,000

11/1/2028 5.000% 57,356.25 57,356.25 165,962.50 1,995,000
5/1/2029 55,000 5.750% 57,356.25 112,356.25 1,940,000

11/1/2029 5.750% 55,775.00 55,775.00 168,131.25 1,940,000
5/1/2030 60,000 5.750% 55,775.00 115,775.00 1,880,000

11/1/2030 5.750% 54,050.00 54,050.00 169,825.00 1,880,000
5/1/2031 60,000 5.750% 54,050.00 114,050.00 1,820,000

11/1/2031 5.750% 52,325.00 52,325.00 166,375.00 1,820,000
5/1/2032 65,000 5.750% 52,325.00 117,325.00 1,755,000

11/1/2032 5.750% 50,456.25 50,456.25 167,781.25 1,755,000
5/1/2033 70,000 5.750% 50,456.25 120,456.25 1,685,000

11/1/2033 5.750% 48,443.75 48,443.75 168,900.00 1,685,000
5/1/2034 75,000 5.750% 48,443.75 123,443.75 1,610,000

11/1/2034 5.750% 46,287.50 46,287.50 169,731.25 1,610,000
5/1/2035 80,000 5.750% 46,287.50 126,287.50 1,530,000

11/1/2035 5.750% 43,987.50 43,987.50 170,275.00 1,530,000
5/1/2036 80,000 5.750% 43,987.50 123,987.50 1,450,000

11/1/2036 5.750% 41,687.50 41,687.50 165,675.00 1,450,000
5/1/2037 85,000 5.750% 41,687.50 126,687.50 1,365,000

11/1/2037 5.750% 39,243.75 39,243.75 165,931.25 1,365,000
5/1/2038 90,000 5.750% 39,243.75 129,243.75 1,275,000

11/1/2038 5.750% 36,656.25 36,656.25 165,900.00 1,275,000
5/1/2039 95,000 5.750% 36,656.25 131,656.25 1,180,000

11/1/2039 5.750% 33,925.00 33,925.00 165,581.25 1,180,000



Page 6 of 11

AVALON GROVES CDD
$2,415,000 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS SERIES 2017 AREA ONE

Debt Service Requirement

Period Ending Principal /(a) Coupon Interest /(a) Debt Service Annual Dbt Srvc
Principal
Balance

5/1/2040 105,000 5.750% 33,925.00 138,925.00 1,075,000
11/1/2040 5.750% 30,906.25 30,906.25 169,831.25 1,075,000
5/1/2041 110,000 5.750% 30,906.25 140,906.25 965,000

11/1/2041 5.750% 27,743.75 27,743.75 168,650.00 965,000
5/1/2042 115,000 5.750% 27,743.75 142,743.75 850,000

11/1/2042 5.750% 24,437.50 24,437.50 167,181.25 850,000
5/1/2043 120,000 5.750% 24,437.50 144,437.50 730,000

11/1/2043 5.750% 20,987.50 20,987.50 165,425.00 730,000
5/1/2044 130,000 5.750% 20,987.50 150,987.50 600,000

11/1/2044 5.750% 17,250.00 17,250.00 168,237.50 600,000
5/1/2045 135,000 5.750% 17,250.00 152,250.00 465,000

11/1/2045 5.750% 13,368.75 13,368.75 165,618.75 465,000
5/1/2046 145,000 5.750% 13,368.75 158,368.75 320,000

11/1/2046 5.750% 9,200.00 9,200.00 167,568.75 320,000
5/1/2047 155,000 5.750% 9,200.00 164,200.00 165,000

11/1/2047 5.750% 4,743.75 4,743.75 168,943.75 165,000
5/1/2048 165,000 5.750% 4,743.75 169,743.75 -

Total $2,415,000.00 2,833,174.48 5,248,174.48 5,078,430.73

Max annual ds: $170,337.50
Footnote:
(a) Data herein for the CDD's budgetary process purposes only.



Page 7 of 11

AVALON GROVES CDD
FY 2019 PROPOSED BUDGET

SERIES 2017A-1 ASSESSMENT AREA TWO

REVENUE
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS - ON-ROLL/OFF ROLL
CAPITAL INTEREST
INTEREST - INVESTMENT
FUND BALANCE FORWARD
LESS: DISCOUNT ASSESSMENTS

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENDITURES
COUNTY - ASSESSMENT COLLECTION FEES
INTEREST EXPENSE
05/01/19
11/01/19

PRINCIPAL RETIREMENT
05/01/19

BUDGET

$ 559,241
-
-
-

(23,302)
535,939

23,302

212,684
210,131

95,000
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 541,117

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (5,180)

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING -
FUND BALANCE - ENDING $ (5,180)

Table 1. Allocation of Maximum Annual Debt Service (MADS) to Lots (2017A-1)

Lot Width Units ERU Annual Assmt
Annual

Assmt/Unit
40' 83 0.90 81,276 979
50' 294 1.00 316,682 1,077
60' 102 1.20 119,857 1,175
Total 479 517,816



Page 8 of 11

AVALON GROVES CDD
$7,215,000 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS SERIES 2017A-1 AREA TWO

Debt Service Requirement

Period Ending Principal /(a) Coupon Interest /(a) Debt Service Annual Dbt Srvc Principal Balance

4/6/2017 7,215,000
11/1/2017 5.375% 242,224 242,224 242,224 7,215,000
5/1/2018 5.375% 212,684 212,684 7,215,000

11/1/2018 5.375% 212,684 212,684 425,369 7,215,000
5/1/2019 95,000 5.375% 212,684 307,684 7,120,000

11/1/2019 5.375% 210,131 210,131 517,816 7,120,000
5/1/2020 100,000 5.375% 210,131 310,131 7,020,000

11/1/2020 5.375% 207,444 207,444 517,575 7,020,000
5/1/2021 105,000 5.375% 207,444 312,444 6,915,000

11/1/2021 5.375% 204,622 204,622 517,066 6,915,000
5/1/2022 110,000 5.375% 204,622 314,622 6,805,000

11/1/2022 5.375% 201,666 201,666 516,288 6,805,000
5/1/2023 115,000 5.375% 201,666 316,666 6,690,000

11/1/2023 5.375% 198,575 198,575 515,241 6,690,000
5/1/2024 120,000 5.375% 198,575 318,575 6,570,000

11/1/2024 5.375% 195,350 195,350 513,925 6,570,000
5/1/2025 130,000 5.375% 195,350 325,350 6,440,000

11/1/2025 5.375% 191,856 191,856 517,206 6,440,000
5/1/2026 135,000 5.375% 191,856 326,856 6,305,000

11/1/2026 5.375% 188,228 188,228 515,084 6,305,000
5/1/2027 145,000 5.375% 188,228 333,228 6,160,000

11/1/2027 5.375% 184,331 184,331 517,559 6,160,000
5/1/2028 150,000 5.375% 184,331 334,331 6,010,000

11/1/2028 5.375% 180,300 180,300 514,631 6,010,000
5/1/2029 160,000 6.000% 180,300 340,300 5,850,000

11/1/2029 6.000% 175,500 175,500 515,800 5,850,000
5/1/2030 170,000 6.000% 175,500 345,500 5,680,000

11/1/2030 6.000% 170,400 170,400 515,900 5,680,000
5/1/2031 180,000 6.000% 170,400 350,400 5,500,000

11/1/2031 6.000% 165,000 165,000 515,400 5,500,000
5/1/2032 190,000 6.000% 165,000 355,000 5,310,000

11/1/2032 6.000% 159,300 159,300 514,300 5,310,000
5/1/2033 205,000 6.000% 159,300 364,300 5,105,000

11/1/2033 6.000% 153,150 153,150 517,450 5,105,000
5/1/2034 215,000 6.000% 153,150 368,150 4,890,000

11/1/2034 6.000% 146,700 146,700 514,850 4,890,000
5/1/2035 230,000 6.000% 146,700 376,700 4,660,000

11/1/2035 6.000% 139,800 139,800 516,500 4,660,000
5/1/2036 245,000 6.000% 139,800 384,800 4,415,000

11/1/2036 6.000% 132,450 132,450 517,250 4,415,000
5/1/2037 260,000 6.000% 132,450 392,450 4,155,000

11/1/2037 6.000% 124,650 124,650 517,100 4,155,000
5/1/2038 275,000 6.000% 124,650 399,650 3,880,000

11/1/2038 6.000% 116,400 116,400 516,050 3,880,000
5/1/2039 290,000 6.000% 116,400 406,400 3,590,000

11/1/2039 6.000% 107,700 107,700 514,100 3,590,000
5/1/2040 310,000 6.000% 107,700 417,700 3,280,000

11/1/2040 6.000% 98,400 98,400 516,100 3,280,000
5/1/2041 330,000 6.000% 98,400 428,400 2,950,000



Page 9 of 11

AVALON GROVES CDD
$7,215,000 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS SERIES 2017A-1 AREA TWO

Debt Service Requirement

Period Ending Principal /(a) Coupon Interest /(a) Debt Service Annual Dbt Srvc Principal Balance
11/1/2041 6.000% 88,500 88,500 516,900 2,950,000
5/1/2042 350,000 6.000% 88,500 438,500 2,600,000

11/1/2042 6.000% 78,000 78,000 516,500 2,600,000
5/1/2043 370,000 6.000% 78,000 448,000 2,230,000

11/1/2043 6.000% 66,900 66,900 514,900 2,230,000
5/1/2044 395,000 6.000% 66,900 461,900 1,835,000

11/1/2044 6.000% 55,050 55,050 516,950 1,835,000
5/1/2045 420,000 6.000% 55,050 475,050 1,415,000

11/1/2045 6.000% 42,450 42,450 517,500 1,415,000
5/1/2046 445,000 6.000% 42,450 487,450 970,000

11/1/2046 6.000% 29,100 29,100 516,550 970,000
5/1/2047 470,000 6.000% 29,100 499,100 500,000

11/1/2047 6.000% 15,000 15,000 514,100 500,000
5/1/2048 500,000 6.000% 15,000 515,000 -

Total $7,215,000.00 8,934,183 16,149,183 15,634,183

Max annual ds: $517,815.63
Footnote:
(a) Data herein for the CDD's budgetary process purposes only.



Page 10 of 11

AVALON GROVES CDD
FY 2019 PROPOSED BUDGET

SERIES 2017A-2 ASSESSMENT AREA TWO

REVENUE
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS - ON-ROLL/OFF ROLL
CAPITAL INTEREST
INTEREST - INVESTMENT
FUND BALANCE FORWARD
LESS: DISCOUNT ASSESSMENTS

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENDITURES
COUNTY - ASSESSMENT COLLECTION FEES
INTEREST EXPENSE
05/01/19
11/01/19

PRINCIPAL RETIREMENT
05/01/19

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING
FUND BALANCE - ENDING

Table 1. Allocation of Maximum Annual Debt Service (MADS) to Lots (2017A-2)

Lot Width Units ERU Total ERU % ERU Annual Assmt
Annual

Assmt/Unit
40 53 0.90 47.70 20.86% 46,428 876
50 103 1.00 103.00 45.04% 100,253 973
60 65 1.20 78.00 34.11% 75,920 1,168

Total 221 228.70 100.00% 222,600

MADS Assmt. per ERU - net 973
MADS Assmt. per ERU - gross 1,058

Total revenue - gross 241,958

$ 241,958
-
-
-

(10,082)

10,082

111,300
111,300

-

(810)

-
(810)$

232,682

231,876

BUDGET



Page 11 of 11

AVALON GROVES CDD
$4,400,000 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS SERIES 2017A-2 AREA TWO

Debt Service Requirement

Period Ending Principal /(a)(b) Coupon Interest /(a) Debt Service Annual Dbt Srvc Principal Balance

4/6/2017 4,400,000
11/1/2017 275,000 6.000% 150,333 425,333 425,333 4,125,000
5/1/2018 415,000 6.000% 123,750 538,750 3,710,000

11/1/2018 6.000% 111,300 111,300 650,050 3,710,000
5/1/2019 6.000% 111,300 111,300 3,710,000

11/1/2019 6.000% 111,300 111,300 222,600 3,710,000
5/1/2020 6.000% 111,300 111,300 3,710,000

11/1/2020 6.000% 111,300 111,300 222,600 3,710,000
5/1/2021 6.000% 111,300 111,300 3,710,000

11/1/2021 6.000% 111,300 111,300 222,600 3,710,000
5/1/2022 6.000% 111,300 111,300 3,710,000

11/1/2022 6.000% 111,300 111,300 222,600 3,710,000
5/1/2023 6.000% 111,300 111,300 3,710,000

11/1/2023 6.000% 111,300 111,300 222,600 3,710,000
5/1/2024 6.000% 111,300 111,300 3,710,000

11/1/2024 6.000% 111,300 111,300 222,600 3,710,000
5/1/2025 6.000% 111,300 111,300 3,710,000

11/1/2025 6.000% 111,300 111,300 222,600 3,710,000
5/1/2026 6.000% 111,300 111,300 3,710,000

11/1/2026 6.000% 111,300 111,300 222,600 3,710,000
5/1/2027 6.000% 111,300 111,300 3,710,000

11/1/2027 6.000% 111,300 111,300 222,600 3,710,000
5/1/2028 6.000% 111,300 111,300 3,710,000

11/1/2028 6.000% 111,300 111,300 222,600 3,710,000
5/1/2029 3,710,000 6.000% 111,300 3,821,300 3,821,300 -

Total $4,400,000 2,722,683 7,122,683 7,122,683

Max annual ds: $222,600
Footnote:
(a) Data herein for the CDD's budgetary process purposesonly.
(b) Extraordinary Manditory Redemption of $275,000 made on2/1/2018



Avalon Groves CDD

FY 2019 Assessment Roll

ParcelId Total

132426000100000200 -$                 

132426000200000700 -$                 

132426000200000800 -$                 

132426000200001300 -$                 

132426000200001500 -$                 

132426000200001700 -$                 

132426000200001800 -$                 

132426000300000400 -$                 

132426000300001000 -$                 

132426000300001100 -$                 

132426000300001900 -$                 

132426000300002300 -$                 

132426000300002400 -$                 

132426000300002500 -$                 

132426000300002600 -$                 

132426000400001200 -$                 

132426000400002200 -$                 

132426010000023400 1,874.72$       

132426010000023500 1,874.72$       

132426010000023600 1,874.72$       

132426010000023700 1,874.72$       

132426010000023800 1,874.72$       

132426010000023900 1,874.72$       

132426010000024000 1,874.72$       

132426010000031900 1,874.72$       

132426010000032000 1,874.72$       

132426010000032100 1,874.72$       

132426010000032200 1,874.72$       

132426010000032300 1,874.72$       

132426010000032400 1,874.72$       

132426010000032500 1,874.72$       

132426010000032600 1,874.72$       

132426010000032700 1,874.72$       

132426010000032800 1,874.72$       

132426010000032900 1,874.72$       

132426010000033000 1,874.72$       

132426010000033100 1,874.72$       

132426010000033200 1,874.72$       

132426010000033300 1,874.72$       

132426010000033400 1,874.72$       

132426010000033500 1,874.72$       

132426010000033600 1,874.72$       

132426010000033700 1,874.72$       



Avalon Groves CDD

FY 2019 Assessment Roll

ParcelId Total

132426010000033800 1,874.72$       

132426010000033900 1,874.72$       

132426010000034000 1,874.72$       

132426010000034100 1,874.72$       

132426010000034200 1,874.72$       

132426010000034300 1,874.72$       

132426010000034400 1,874.72$       

132426010000034500 1,874.72$       

132426010000034600 1,874.72$       

132426010000034700 1,874.72$       

132426010000034800 1,874.72$       

132426010000034900 1,874.72$       

132426010000035000 1,874.72$       

132426010000035100 1,874.72$       

132426010000035200 1,874.72$       

132426010000037200 1,874.72$       

132426010000037300 1,768.29$       

132426010000037400 1,768.29$       

132426010000037500 1,768.29$       

132426010000037600 1,768.29$       

132426010000037700 1,874.72$       

132426010000037800 1,768.29$       

132426010000037900 1,768.29$       

132426010000038000 1,768.29$       

132426010000038100 1,768.29$       

132426010000038200 1,768.29$       

132426010000038300 1,768.29$       

132426010000038400 1,768.29$       

132426010000038500 1,768.29$       

132426010000038600 1,768.29$       

132426010000038700 1,768.29$       

132426010000038800 1,768.29$       

132426010000038900 1,768.29$       

132426010000039000 1,768.29$       

132426010000039100 1,768.29$       

132426010000039200 1,874.72$       

1324260100C0500000 -$                 

1324260100C0600000 -$                 

1324260100D0100000 -$                 

1324260100D0200000 -$                 

1324260100D0300000 -$                 

1324260100F0200000 -$                 

1324260100G0100000 -$                 



Avalon Groves CDD

FY 2019 Assessment Roll

ParcelId Total

1324260100N0600000 -$                 

1324260100S0100000 -$                 

1324260100S0200000 -$                 

1324260100S0300000 -$                 

1324260100S0400000 -$                 

1324260100T0300000 -$                 

1324260100T0400000 -$                 

132426012500000100 1,981.16$       

132426012500000200 1,981.16$       

132426012500000300 1,981.16$       

132426012500000400 1,981.16$       

132426012500000500 1,981.16$       

132426012500000600 1,981.16$       

132426012500000700 1,981.16$       

132426012500000800 1,981.16$       

132426012500000900 1,981.16$       

132426012500001000 1,981.16$       

132426012500001100 1,981.16$       

132426012500001200 1,981.16$       

132426012500001300 1,981.16$       

132426012500001400 1,981.16$       

132426012500001500 1,981.16$       

132426012500001600 1,981.16$       

132426012500010100 1,981.16$       

132426012500010200 1,981.16$       

132426012500010300 1,981.16$       

132426012500010400 1,981.16$       

132426012500010500 1,981.16$       

132426012500010600 1,981.16$       

132426012500010700 1,981.16$       

132426012500010800 1,981.16$       

132426012500010900 1,981.16$       

132426012500011000 1,981.16$       

132426012500011100 1,981.16$       

132426012500011200 1,981.16$       

132426012500011300 1,981.16$       

132426012500011400 1,981.16$       

132426012500011500 1,981.16$       

132426012500014300 1,981.16$       

132426012500014400 1,981.16$       

1324260125A0100000 -$                 

1324260125C0200000 -$                 

1324260125C0400000 -$                 



Avalon Groves CDD

FY 2019 Assessment Roll

ParcelId Total

1324260125D0100000 -$                 

1324260125D0500000 -$                 

1324260125D0600000 -$                 

1324260125D0700000 -$                 

1324260125E0200000 -$                 

1324260125E0400000 -$                 

1324260125F0100000 -$                 

132426013000001700 1,981.16$       

132426013000001800 1,981.16$       

132426013000001900 1,981.16$       

132426013000002000 1,981.16$       

132426013000002100 1,981.16$       

132426013000002200 1,981.16$       

132426013000002300 1,981.16$       

132426013000002400 1,981.16$       

132426013000002500 1,981.16$       

132426013000002600 1,874.72$       

132426013000002700 1,874.72$       

132426013000002800 1,874.72$       

132426013000002900 1,874.72$       

132426013000003000 1,874.72$       

132426013000008600 1,981.16$       

132426013000008700 1,981.16$       

132426013000008800 1,981.16$       

132426013000008900 1,981.16$       

132426013000009000 1,981.16$       

132426013000009100 1,981.16$       

132426013000009200 1,981.16$       

132426013000009300 1,981.16$       

132426013000009400 1,981.16$       

132426013000009500 1,981.16$       

132426013000009600 1,981.16$       

132426013000009700 1,981.16$       

132426013000009800 1,981.16$       

132426013000009900 1,981.16$       

132426013000010000 1,981.16$       

132426013000011600 1,981.16$       

132426013000011700 1,874.72$       

132426013000011800 1,874.72$       

132426013000011900 1,874.72$       

132426013000012000 1,874.72$       

132426013000012100 1,874.72$       

132426013000012200 1,874.72$       



Avalon Groves CDD

FY 2019 Assessment Roll

ParcelId Total

132426013000012300 1,874.72$       

132426013000012400 1,874.72$       

132426013000012500 1,874.72$       

132426013000012600 1,874.72$       

132426013000012700 1,874.72$       

132426013000012800 1,874.72$       

132426013000012900 1,874.72$       

132426013000013000 1,874.72$       

132426013000013100 1,874.72$       

132426013000013200 1,874.72$       

132426013000013300 1,874.72$       

132426013000013400 1,874.72$       

132426013000013500 1,874.72$       

132426013000013600 1,981.16$       

132426013000013700 1,981.16$       

132426013000013800 1,981.16$       

132426013000013900 1,981.16$       

132426013000014000 1,981.16$       

132426013000014100 1,981.16$       

132426013000014200 1,981.16$       

132426013000015900 1,874.72$       

132426013000016000 1,874.72$       

132426013000016100 1,874.72$       

132426013000016200 1,874.72$       

132426013000016300 1,874.72$       

132426013000016400 1,874.72$       

132426013000016500 1,874.72$       

132426013000016600 1,874.72$       

132426013000016700 1,874.72$       

132426013000016800 1,874.72$       

132426013000016900 1,874.72$       

132426013000017000 1,874.72$       

132426013000017100 1,874.72$       

132426013000017200 1,874.72$       

1324260130A0100000 -$                 

1324260130C0200000 -$                 

1324260130S0100000 -$                 

142426000400000500 -$                 

142426000400002200 -$                 

142426000400002300 -$                 

142426000400002400 -$                 

232426000100004900 -$                 

242426000100001300 -$                 



Avalon Groves CDD

FY 2019 Assessment Roll

ParcelId Total

242426000100001400 -$                 

242426000100001600 -$                 

242426000100001700 -$                 

242426000200001200 -$                 

242426000200001500 -$                 

242426000200001800 -$                 

Total 314,331.95$  



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 8 



Amount Board Approved/Notes
Original Contract 2,725,756.65$       

Change Order 1 ‐ Add Turn Lanes to Villages 73,828.00$              Agrees to 12.30.2017 Pay App
Change Order 2 ‐ Speed Bumps 18,700.00$              Approved 12/18/2017
Change Order 3 ‐ Temporary Turnarounds (25,864.80)$             Approved 05/24/2018

66,663.20$             

Total Contract TO Date 2,792,419.85$       

Original Contract ‐ Randy Suggs 196,366.30$           
Change Order 1 ‐ Serenoa Village 1& 2 40,760.50$             

Total Contract TO Date 237,126.80$           

Original Contract ‐ Jon Hall 2,300,228.53$       

Change Order 1 ‐ Paving Eastbound Lanes‐Active Adult 214,768.80$            8/24/2017
Change Order 2 ‐ Reconstruction  681,773.00$             10/26/2017
Change Order 3 ‐ Deduct from scope of work (5,469.00)$               12/18/2017
Change Order 4 ‐ Construciton of Cofferdam 20,915.20$             
Change Order 5 ‐ Deduct from Scope of Work (8,850.51)$              

903,137.49$           

Total Contract To Date 3,203,366.02$       

Original Contract ‐ Randy Suggs 392,098.38$           
Change Order 1 ‐ Sawgrass Bay Boulevard 76,063.20$             

Total Contract to Date 468,161.58$           

Contract 

AVALON GROVES CHANGE ORDER ANALYSIS  ‐ 08/21/2018

SAWGRASS BAY PHASE ‐ 1&2

SERENOA  VILLAGES 1&2 ‐ Phase 1A



Randy Suggs, Inc.
P.O. Box 1141

Apopka FL 32704
407-886-8835

www.randysuggsinc.com

PROPOSAL

Customer:Project
Serenoa Villages 1 & 2

Date
5/21/2018

Estimate #
EST10041

Bill To
Avalon Groves Community Development District
1060 Maitland Center Commons
Ste 340
Maitland FL 32751

Project
Serenoa Villages 1 & 2

Date:________________Signature:________________________________________

Item

LS: Tree Work or Removal

LS: Tree Installation
LS: Tree Installation
LS: Tree Installation
LS: Tree Installation
LS: Irrigation Installation

Symbol Quantity

1

40
12
3
3
1

Description
Serenoa Villages 1&2 Change Order #1

Remove and relocate small pine trees around pond
banks and entrances. Landscape architect to direct
new placement of trees.
Red Maples: 2.25” CAL 10-12’ Ht.
Small Cypress
Oaks
Large Cypress
Installation of Irrigation System: Additional
requirements due to additional material

Rate

6,400.00

475.00
275.00
850.00
435.00

8,205.50

Amount

6,400.00

19,000.00
3,300.00
2,550.00
1,305.00
8,205.50

Total $40,760.50



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 9 











  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 10 









POND

POND

POND

POND

POND

POND

POND

POND

POND

POND

POND

POND

POND

POND

POND

POND

POND

POND

POND

POND

POND

POND

POND

FUTURE
AMENITY

SITE

POND

POND

POND

POND

POND

POND

POND

POND

POND

POND

POND

POND

POND

POND

POND

POND

POND

POND

POND

POND

POND

POND

POND

FUTURE
AMENITY

SITE

*

*
*
*

*

*

45

63

281

292

173

175

31
32

33
34

35
36

37 38
39

40
41 42 43

44

223

46
47

48
49

50
51

52
53

54

55

56

57

58

59

60

61

62

646566676869707172
73

74
75

76

78
77

79
80

81
82

83
84

85

145

146

147

148

149

288

150

151

152

153

154

155

156

157

158

200

199
174

432

178

435

176

177

179

433

180

181

182

183

184

185

186
187

188

189

190

191

192

193

194

195

196

197

198

222

221 220 219 218 217 216 215 214 213

212

211
210

209

208
207

206
205

204
203

202
201

233

232

231

230

229

228

227

226

225

224

254

250
251

252

255

256

257

258

259

260

261
262

263

264

265

266

267

268

269

253271

469

447

446

309

308

307

306

305

304

303

302

301

300

299

298

272
273

274
275

276

277

278

280

279
283

282

284

289

285
286287

290

291
293

294
295

296
297

270

431

434

437

436

438

439

440

441

442

443

444

445

411

410

409

408

405

404

403

402

401

400

399

398

397

396

395

394

393

479478477
475476

474473472471470
468467466

465

464

463

462

461

460

459
458

457
456 455454

453 452 451
450

449

448

407

406

PLAYGROUND/
TOT LOT

MAIL
KIOSK

45

63

281

292

173

175

31
32

33
34

35
36

37 38
39

40
41 42 43

44

223

46
47

48
49

50
51

52
53

54

55

56

57

58

59

60

61

62

646566676869707172
73

74
75

76

78
77

79
80

81
82

83
84

85

145

146

147

148

149

288

150

151

152

153

154

155

156

157

158

200

199
174

432

178

435

176

177

179

433

180

181

182

183

184

185

186
187

188

189

190

191

192

193

194

195

196

197

198

222

221 220 219 218 217 216 215 214 213

212

211
210

209

208
207

206
205

204
203

202
201

233

232

231

230

229

228

227

226

225

224

254

250
251

252

255

256

257

258

259

260

261
262

263

264

265

266

267

268

269

253271

469

447

446

309

308

307

306

305

304

303

302

301

300

299

298

272
273

274
275

276

277

278

280

279
283

282

284

289

285
286287

290

291
293

294
295

296
297

270

431

434

437

436

438

439

440

441

442

443

444

445

411

410

409

408

405

404

403

402

401

400

399

398

397

396

395

394

393

479478477
475476

474473472471470
468467466

465

464

463

462

461

460

459
458

457
456 455454

453 452 451
450

449

448

407

406

PLAYGROUND/
TOT LOT

MAIL
KIOSK

1
2 3 4 5 6

7
8

9
10

11

12

13

14

15

16
237

332

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109
110

111
112113114115

324

322

143

144

379

235
234

238

236

240
239

377

391

326
327

328

329
330

331

335

333

334

336

337

338

339

340

341

342

343

344

345

346
347

348
349

350
351

352

325

323

321

319
320

372

373

374

375

376

378

381

380

382

385

383

384

387

386

389

388

392

390

1
2 3 4 5 6

7
8

9
10

11

12

13

14

15

16
237

332

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109
110

111
112113114115

324

322

143

144

379

235
234

238

236

240
239

377

391

326
327

328

329
330

331

335

333

334

336

337

338

339

340

341

342

343

344

345

346
347

348
349

350
351

352

325

323

321

319
320

372

373

374

375

376

378

381

380

382

385

383

384

387

386

389

388

392

390 17

18
19

20 21 22
23 24 25

26
27

28
29

30

116

159

86
87

88
89

90

92

91

94

93

96

95

97

99

98

117
118 119

120
121

122

123

124

125

126

127

128

129

130

131

132

133

136
134

137

135

139

140

138

141

142

160

161

162

163

164

165

166

167

168

169

170

171

172

242
244 243

247 245246

249
248

318

317
316

315
314

313
312

311
310

430

429

428

427

426

425

424

423

422

421

420

419

418

417

416

415

414

413

412

355

358

354

359

356

357

361

360

362

363

365

370

364

367

366

368

369

371

353

241

17

18
19

20 21 22
23 24 25

26
27

28
29

30

116

159

86
87

88
89

90

92

91

94

93

96

95

97

99

98

117
118 119

120
121

122

123

124

125

126

127

128

129

130

131

132

133

136
134

137

135

139

140

138

141

142

160

161

162

163

164

165

166

167

168

169

170

171

172

242
244 243

247 245246

249
248

318

317
316

315
314

313
312

311
310

430

429

428

427

426

425

424

423

422

421

420

419

418

417

416

415

414

413

412

355

358

354

359

356

357

361

360

362

363

365

370

364

367

366

368

369

371

353

241

KEY:

xxx SF (x.xx ACRES) SLOPES OF POND

xxx SF (x.xx ACRES) BUFFER

xxx SF (x.xx ACRES) COMMON OPEN SPACE

xxx SF (x.xx ACRES) WETLAND CONSERVATION

PROPERTY LIMITS

Serenoa
Avalon Groves CDD Landscape Maintenance Exhibit

Avalon Groves CDD
Lake County Note: This is a preliminary/conceptual site plan and is subject to

survey information, final design, engineering and governmental
approvals, additional drainage, floodplain and grand tree
analysis is required and may affect final unit totals and layout.

DATE: JOB #:
DATE DESCRIPTION BY

DATE: JOB #:

R
:\A

V
A

LO
N

 G
R

O
V

E
S

\C
D

D
\E

X
H

IB
IT

S
\E

X
H

-C
D

D
-L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 M
A

IN
T.

D
W

G
-A

R
C

H
-E

 --
--

 --
--

 K
Y

LE
 P

A
S

S
E

N
E

A
U

©
 C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T
--

--,
 H

E
ID

T 
D

E
S

IG
N

, L
LC

.
A

LL
 R

IG
H

TS
 R

E
S

E
R

V
E

D
.

N
O

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
TA

TI
O

N
 (I

N
C

LU
D

IN
G

 B
U

T 
N

O
T 

LI
M

IT
E

D
 T

O
D

R
A

W
IN

G
S

 O
R

 E
X

H
IB

IT
S

) M
A

Y
 B

E
 C

O
P

IE
D

, R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
D

, O
R

 D
IS

TR
IB

U
TE

D
 U

N
LE

S
S

 S
P

E
C

IF
IC

 W
R

IT
TE

N
 P

E
R

M
IS

S
IO

N
H

A
S

 B
E

E
N

 O
B

TA
IN

E
D

 F
R

O
M

 H
E

ID
T 

D
E

S
IG

N
, L

LC
. I

N
 A

D
V

A
N

C
E

.
C

O
N

S
E

N
T 

IS
 H

E
R

E
B

Y
 G

R
A

N
TE

D
 S

P
E

C
IF

IC
A

LL
Y

 T
O

G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
TA

L 
A

G
E

N
C

IE
S

 T
O

 R
E

P
R

O
D

U
C

E
 T

H
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
TA

TI
O

N
 IN

 C
O

M
P

LI
A

N
C

E
 W

IT
H

 F
.S

. C
H

A
P

TE
R

 1
19

.

0 100 20050
SCALE: 1" = 100'



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 11 



Job Name: Proposal #
Property Name: Date:  
Client:
Address:
City/State/Zip:   
Phone:

Yellowstone Landscape will complete the work described below:

Description

Project Pricing Summary
Materials & Labor 3,000.00              
Equipment -                       
Site & Additional Services -                       
Total Price 3,000.00$            

Client: Prepared by:

  
  
Date: Date: July 31, 2018

Project Number: District:

PO Reference: Date Work Completed:

Serona Blvd - Mow Bahia Ponds, Blvd, and Behind Select Homes
Avalon Groves CDD
Kolter Development

The price is for two times a month.  

ACCEPTANCE OF TERMS

Rob Stultz

Signature below authorizes Yellowstone Landscape to perform work as described above and verifies that the prices and specifications are 
hereby accepted.
Payment terms: Net 30 days.  All overdue balances will be a charged a 1.5% a month, 18% annual percentage rate.
Limited Warranty: All plant material is under a limited warranty for one year.  Transplanted plant material and/or plant material that dies due to 
conditions out of Yellowstone Landscape’s control (i.e. Acts of God, vandalism, inadequate irrigation due to water restrictions, etc.) shall not 

be included in the warranty.

Orlando South

Enhancement Proposal

July 31, 2018

Mowing of the Bahia alond Serona Boulevard.  Includes ponds, buffers around ponds, and buffers behind select homes.

Internal Use Only



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 12 



1

Patricia Comings-Thibault

From: Candice Smith <csmith@kolter.com>
Sent: Friday, August 03, 2018 9:23 AM
To: Luis Silva
Cc: Patricia Comings-Thibault
Subject: RE: Serenoa mow

Luis: 
 
We accept your notice below and request all service to cease August 1, 2018. 
 
Candice Smith 
Land Development Manager 
Kolter Land Partners LLC 
14025 Riveredge Drive, Suite 175 
Tampa, FL 33637 
 
Office: 813-615-1244 ext 208 
Mobile: 813-334-2019 
_____________________________ 
This email may contain information that is proprietary, legally privileged and/or confidential.  If the reader of this email is not the intended recipient(s) or 
the employee or agent responsible for delivering the message to the intended recipient(s), you are hereby notified: (i) that any dissemination, distribution 
or copying of this email is strictly prohibited and may be unlawful; and (ii) to contact the sender immediately by reply email and delete this email and any 
attachments without retaining any copies. 
 
From: Luis Silva <uslawnsorlando@gmail.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, July 25, 2018 12:39 PM 
To: Candice Smith <csmith@kolter.com> 
Subject: Re: Serenoa mow 
 
This email originated externally. If you suspect it is malicious, do NOT open any attachments or click on any links and forward 
this message to Kolter helpdesk. 

That's fine we will be advancing our 30 day notice with last service date being on 08/25/18. We have advised of the 
problems with this project but they have fallen on death ears. I have personally been out to the site and spoken on 
numerous occasions and identified the areas that we take care, so any area that has not been mowed has not ever been 
discussed except for now when all of a sudden its a problem. We communicate when we are going out so many of these 
items can be discussed while on site or previous to service. We are mowing the ponds which don't have irrigation in 
them so not very sure how we can make any breaks.  
 
 
Luis Silva  
Owner 
US Army Veteran 
____________________________ 
 U.S. Lawns of Orlando 
P: (407) 412-8266 | C: (407) 412-8266 
1127 Coastal Cir Ocoee, FL 
USLAWNSORLANDO@GMAIL.COM 
www.uslawns.com 
  
★★★ Your Turf. Our Lawn. 
 
  
 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 13 

























May 4, 2018 
 
 
Tim Wetzel 
St.  Johns River Water Management District  
601 South Lake Destiny Road, Suite 200 
Maitland, FL 32751 
 
 
Proj: Avalon Groves Roadway – Lake County, FL 

SJRWMD Permit #135777-3 
(BTC File #588-13) 

Re: Baseline Monitoring Report (May 2018) 
 
 
Dear Mr.  Wetzel: 
 
Bio-Tech Consulting, Inc.  (BTC) is corresponding to provide the St.  Johns 
River Water Management District (SJRWMD) with the baseline monitoring 
report for the on-site wetland preservation for the approximately 52.04-acre 
Avalon Groves Roadway site located east of SR 27 on Sawgrass bay 
boulevard, within Section 13, 14, 23, 24, Township 24 South, Range 26 East, 
Lake County, Florida (Figures 1 & 2).  This baseline monitoring report will 
include the following information: 
 

• Monitoring and maintenance methodology; 
• monitoring results of the wetland creation/restoration areas; 
• incidental wildlife observation; and, 
• photographs of the mitigation areas. 

 
INTRODUCTION 
 
The approved mitigation plan for the Avalon Groves Roadway site involves 
the 7.49 acres of wetland impacts, and a wetland preservation area (144.3 
acres) placed under a conservation easement dedicated to the SJRWMD.  The 
following monitoring report details the permit requirements for successful 
monitoring criteria and qualitative analysis of the wetland and upland areas. 



Tim Wetzel – SJRWMD 
Avalon Groves Roadway (BTC File #588-13) 
Baseline Monitoring Report (May 2018) 
Page 2 of 6 

 

MONITORING 
 
Qualitative Monitoring 
 
The monitoring will consist of general qualitative observations in the wetland preservation areas. A 
summary of the data collected will be included in an annual report submitted to the District each year 
in April. The recorded data obtained from the vegetative monitoring will be provided to the District 
in report form and will be submitted on an annual basis. Reports will include the following:  

 
A. The dates and time of the monitoring event.  
B. The person responsible for performing the measurements.  
C. The analytical techniques or methods utilized.  
D. The results of such analyses including:  

1. Status of invader species 
2. Coverage by wetland and FACW vegetation. 
3. A description of any problems encountered during evaluation and proposed 
solutions. 
4. Photographs of the area. 

 
In addition to the vegetative portion of the monitoring to be conducted, wildlife information will also 
be gathered and described in the report. Information and exhibits as to the location of the sampling 
stations will be included within the Baseline Monitoring Report. 
 
MANAGEMENT AND MAINTENANCE 
 
Specific management practices will be employed within the wetland enhancement/wetland 
creation area that will consist of hand clearing activities and the utilization of herbicidal 
applications to eliminate invasive and exotic species, as needed.  These management practices 
will be implemented in an effort to control and eradicate any invasive, exotic, or opportunistic 
species within the mitigation areas.  All vegetation associated with the maintenance activities 
will be removed from the mitigation areas to eliminate the invasive/exotic species seed source.  
These management practices will be employed within the mitigation areas, as needed and in 
perpetuity.   

 

All portions of the project’s mitigation areas will be managed for the benefit of wildlife and 
vegetative composition.  Obviously, the most important component of the management is 
treatment for control of invasive and exotic vegetation, in perpetuity.  It is anticipated that the 
mitigation areas will require little long-term management once the natural systems succeed 
ecologically and become self-perpetuating.  Maintenance will include removal of any invasive or 
exotic plant species (including, but not limited to cattails, primrose willow, cogon grass, golden 



Tim Wetzel – SJRWMD 
Avalon Groves Roadway (BTC File #588-13) 
Baseline Monitoring Report (May 2018) 
Page 3 of 6 

 

bamboo, etc...).  No more than a 5% total coverage of such exotic or nuisance species shall occur 
between maintenance events. 
 
It should be noted that during the 3-year monitoring period, maintenance is proposed to occur on 
a twice-monthly (2x/mth) basis for the first year (24 events) and monthly for the remaining two 
years (24 events).  After that, maintenance will be on an as needed basis in perpetuity to maintain 
less than 5% total coverage of exotic or nuisance species. 
 
REPORTING 
 
An annual letter report will be filed with the SJRWMD within 60 days of the end of each year’s 
monitoring event.  The letter report will detail the status of the wetland enhancement/wetland 
creation area and its quantitative observations, the maintenance/management events that have 
occurred, any incidental wildlife sightings, and photographs of the wetland/upland preservation 
and wetland creation areas.   
 
Success Criteria 
 
The intent of this project is to provide the SJRWMD with quantitative results of the wetland 
enhancement/wetland creation area.  Perpetual maintenance will be performed on a regular basis 
as detailed previously in order to ensure the integrity and viability of both the preservation and 
creation areas.  As part of the activities that are designed to achieve the functional gains 
indicated in the UMAM Analysis, the success criteria for the wetland enhancement/wetland 
creation area will consist of the following: 
 
 Wetland Creation Area (WC-1) 
  

• Greater than 85 percent coverage by desirable species after 3 years; and, 
• Less than 5 percent areal coverage by invasive and/or exotic species. 

 
The wetland preservation area will be monitored on a bi-annual basis so that nuisance and exotic 
species, per the 2011 FLEPPC list, do not exceed 5% areal coverage in the wetland. Maintenance 
will be implemented on a quarterly basis with the goal of the event being the elimination the exotic 
component (i.e., 0% after event). Additionally, these areas will be placed under a conservation 
easement dedicated to the District. 
 
RESULTS 
 
Baseline Monitoring Results –Avalon Groves  Roadway  



Tim Wetzel – SJRWMD 
Avalon Groves Roadway (BTC File #588-13) 
Baseline Monitoring Report (May 2018) 
Page 4 of 6 

 

 
Blake Labreche of BTC performed the baseline monitoring event for the mitigation areas on May 
31, 2018.  Photographs of the mitigation areas are attached (see Appendix A).   
 
Vegetative species identified within the wetland vegetative community contains various tree 
species along with numerous understory and herbaceous species. The vegetation within these 
forested systems include red maple (Acer rubrum), pond pine (Pinus serotina), sweetbay 
(Magnolia Virginia), laurel oak (Quercus laurifolia), loblolly bay (Gordonia lasianthus), water 
oak (Quercus nigra), cabbage palm (Sabal palmetto), swamp tupelo (Nyssa sylvatica), royal fern 
Osmunda regalis), poison ivy (Toxicodendron radicans), wild azalea (Rhododendron viscosum), 
coinwort (Centella asiatica), pennywort (Hydrocotle umbellata), maidencane (Panicum 
hemitomon), spike rush (Eleocharis baldwinii), soft rush (Juncus effusus), Juncus spp., sedges 
(Carex sp. and Cyperus spp.), Digitaria spp., broomsedge (Andropogon virginicus), beakrush 
(Rhynchospora spp.), primrose willow (Ludwigia octavalvis), cattail (Typha spp.), pickerelweed 
(Pontedaria cordata), duck potato (Saggitaria lancifolia) and umbrella grass (Fuirena 
squarrosa), and wild elderberry (Sambucus Canadensis. Coverage of desirable native species 
was approximately 85% during the baseline monitoring event. 
 
Category I and II exotic species identified includes Peruvian primrosewillow (Ludwigia 
peruviana), caesarweed (Urena lobata) and tropical soda apple (Solanum viarum).  Coverage of 
the exotics was approximately 3% with Peruvian primrosewillow, caesarweed, and tropical soda 
apple occurring scattered through-out the wetland and upland preservation areas.  Nuisance plant 
species consist of only bahiagrass (Paspalum notatum) located within the upland at 
approximately 2% areal coverage.   
 
 
WILDLIFE UTILIZATION 
 
The Avalon Groves  Roadway site was evaluated to determine the wildlife species currently 
utilizing the area.  The following is a list of those species present during the monitoring event 
and includes any direct and indirect (i.e.  tracks, burrows, vocalizations, etc.) observations made.   
 

Reptiles and Amphibians 
black racer (Coluber constrictor) 
brown anole (Norops sagrei) 
common cooter (Pseudemys floridana) 
southern leopard frog (Rana utricularia) 
 
 

  Birds 
Black-bellied whistling duck (Dendrocygna autumnalis) 



Tim Wetzel – SJRWMD 
Avalon Groves Roadway (BTC File #588-13) 
Baseline Monitoring Report (May 2018) 
Page 5 of 6 

 

Cattle Egret (Bubulus ibis) 
Common Grackle (Quiscalus quiscula) 
Double-crested Cormorant (Phalacrocorax auritus) 
Florida Sandhill Crane (Antigone canadensis pratensis) 
Great Blue Heron (Ardea herodias) 
Little Blue Heron (Egretta caerulea) 
Mallard (Anas platyrhynchos) 
Northern Mockingbird (Mimus polyglottos) 
Red-shouldered Hawk (Buteo lineatus) 
Roseate Spoonbill (Ajaia ajaja) 
Tricolored Heron (Egretta tricolor) 
Turkey Vulture (Cathartes aura) 
White Ibis (Eudocimus albus) 
 
 
Mammals 

  eastern gray squirrel (Sciurus carolinensis) 
nine-banded armadillo (Dasypus novemcinctus) 
coyote (Canis latrans) 
raccoon (Procyon lotor) 
Virginia opossum (Didelphis virginiana) 
white-tailed deer (Odocoileus virginianus) 

 
 
 
 
SUMMARY 
 
The Avalon Groves Roadway wetland preservation areas were monitored on May 31, 2018, for 
the baseline monitoring event.  Coverage of desirable native species was approximately 97% 
within the wetland preservation area and 97% within the upland preservation area during the 
baseline monitoring event.  Category I and II exotic species identified includes Peruvian 
primrosewillow (Ludwigia peruviana) and caesarweed (Urena lobata). Coverage of the exotics 
was approximately 2% with Peruvian primrosewillow, caesarweed, and tropical soda apple 
occurring scattered through-out the wetland and upland preservation areas.  Nuisance plant 
species consist of only bahiagrass (Paspalum notatum) located within the upland at 
approximately 1% areal coverage.  Maintenance events have not yet started but will be 
performed on a monthly basis for the first year and then quarterly for years two thru five.  Water 
levels within the wetland and upland preservation areas ranged from moist to 12 inches.  These 
water levels and conditions were consistent with historic norms and seasonal variations for this 



Tim Wetzel – SJRWMD 
Avalon Groves Roadway (BTC File #588-13) 
Baseline Monitoring Report (May 2018) 
Page 6 of 6 

 

time of year; and recent and longer term weather patterns for this area of Central Florida.  
Monitoring events will be performed bi-annually in January and July for five (5) years with 
reports to follow or until SJRWMD sign off on the monitoring for the project. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 

 
 
Blake Labreche      Danny Gough 
Field Biologist      Project Manager 

 
Attachments 
 



Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, i-cubed, USDA, USGS, AEX, Getmapping,
Aerogrid, IGN, IGP, swisstopo, and the GIS User Community

Project #:623-07
Produced By:DBG
Date: 12/11/2015

Avalon Groves Collector Road
Lake County, Florida

Wetland Preservation Exhibit

1,400
Feet

²2002 E. Robinson St.  Orlando, FL  32803
Ph:  407-894-5969  Fax:  407-894-5970 
www.bio-techconsulting.com

Legend
Avalon Groves Road Wetland Preservation (144.3 acres)



Serenoa Roadway – Wetland Preservation Photo station 1 – May 2018 

Serenoa Roadway – Wetland Preservation Photo station 1 – May 2018 



Serenoa Roadway – Wetland Preservation Photo station 1 – May 2018 

Serenoa Roadway – Wetland Preservation Photo station 1 – May 2018 



Serenoa Roadway – Wetland Preservation Photo station 2 – May 2018 

Serenoa Roadway – Wetland Preservation Photo station 2 – May 2018 



Serenoa Roadway – Wetland Preservation Photo station 2 – May 2018 

Serenoa Roadway – Wetland Preservation Photo station 2 – May 2018 



Serenoa Roadway – Wetland Preservation Photo station 3 – May 2018 

Serenoa Roadway – Wetland Preservation Photo station 3 – May 2018 



Serenoa Roadway – Wetland Preservation Photo station 3 – May 2018 

Serenoa Roadway – Wetland Preservation Photo station 3 – May 2018 



Serenoa Roadway – Wetland Preservation Photo station 4 – May 2018 

Serenoa Roadway – Wetland Preservation Photo station 4 – May 2018 



Serenoa Roadway – Wetland Preservation Photo station 4 – May 2018 

Serenoa Roadway – Wetland Preservation Photo station 4 – May 2018 



Serenoa Roadway – Wetland Preservation Photo station 5 – May 2018 

Serenoa Roadway – Wetland Preservation Photo station 5 – May 2018 



Serenoa Roadway – Wetland Preservation Photo station 5 – May 2018 

Serenoa Roadway – Wetland Preservation Photo station 5 – May 2018 



Serenoa Roadway – Wetland Preservation Photo station 6 – May 2018 

Serenoa Roadway – Wetland Preservation Photo station 6 – May 2018 



Serenoa Roadway – Wetland Preservation Photo station 6 – May 2018 

Serenoa Roadway – Wetland Preservation Photo station 6 – May 2018 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 14 

























May 4, 2018 
 
 
Tim Wetzel 
St.  Johns River Water Management District  
601 South Lake Destiny Road, Suite 200 
Maitland, FL 32751 
 
 
Proj: Serenoa (AKA Avalon Groves) Villages 1&2 - Phase 1A – Lake 

County, FL 
SJRWMD Permit #135777-5 
(BTC File #588-12) 

Re: Baseline Monitoring Report (May 2018) 
 
 
Dear Mr.  Wetzel: 
 
Bio-Tech Consulting, Inc.  (BTC) is corresponding to provide the St.  Johns 
River Water Management District (SJRWMD) with the baseline monitoring 
report for the on-site wetland creation and enhancement for the 
approximately 141.9-acre Serenoa (AKA Avalon Groves) Villages 1&2 - 
Phase 1A site, located east of SR 27 on Sawgrass bay boulevard, within 
Section 13, 14, 23, 24, Township 24 South, Range 26 East, Lake County, 
Florida (Figures 1 & 2). This baseline monitoring report will include the 
following information: 
 

• Monitoring and maintenance methodology; 
• monitoring results of the wetland creation/restoration areas; 
• incidental wildlife observation; and, 
• photographs of the mitigation areas. 

 
INTRODUCTION 
 
The approved mitigation plan for the Serenoa Phase 1 site involves offsetting 
the proposed wetland impacts (3.41 acres) with the wetland preservation area 
(45.9 acres) placed under a conservation easement dedicated to the 
SJRWMD.  The following monitoring report details the permit requirements 
for successful monitoring criteria and qualitative analysis of the wetland and 
upland areas. 



Tim Wetzel – SJRWMD 
Serenoa Phase 1 (BTC File #588-13) 
Baseline Monitoring Report (May 2018) 
Page 2 of 6 

 

MONITORING 
 
Qualitative Monitoring 
 
The monitoring will consist of general qualitative observations in the wetland preservation areas. A 
summary of the data collected will be included in an annual report submitted to the District each year 
in April. The recorded data obtained from the vegetative monitoring will be provided to the District 
in report form and will be submitted on an annual basis. Reports will include the following:  

 
A. The dates and time of the monitoring event.  
B. The person responsible for performing the measurements.  
C. The analytical techniques or methods utilized.  
D. The results of such analyses including:  

1. Status of invader species 
2. Coverage by wetland and FACW vegetation. 
3. A description of any problems encountered during evaluation and proposed 
solutions. 
4. Photographs of the area. 

 
In addition to the vegetative portion of the monitoring to be conducted, wildlife information will also 
be gathered and described in the report. Information and exhibits as to the location of the sampling 
stations will be included within the Baseline Monitoring Report. 
 
MANAGEMENT AND MAINTENANCE 
 
Specific management practices will be employed within the wetland enhancement/wetland 
creation area that will consist of hand clearing activities and the utilization of herbicidal 
applications to eliminate invasive and exotic species, as needed.  These management practices 
will be implemented in an effort to control and eradicate any invasive, exotic, or opportunistic 
species within the mitigation areas.  All vegetation associated with the maintenance activities 
will be removed from the mitigation areas to eliminate the invasive/exotic species seed source.  
These management practices will be employed within the mitigation areas, as needed and in 
perpetuity.   

 

All portions of the project’s mitigation areas will be managed for the benefit of wildlife and 
vegetative composition.  Obviously, the most important component of the management is 
treatment for control of invasive and exotic vegetation, in perpetuity.  It is anticipated that the 
mitigation areas will require little long-term management once the natural systems succeed 
ecologically and become self-perpetuating.  Maintenance will include removal of any invasive or 
exotic plant species (including, but not limited to cattails, primrose willow, cogon grass, golden 



Tim Wetzel – SJRWMD 
Serenoa Phase 1 (BTC File #588-12) 
Baseline Monitoring Report (May 2018) 
Page 3 of 6 

 

bamboo, etc...).  No more than a 5% total coverage of such exotic or nuisance species shall occur 
between maintenance events. 
 
It should be noted that during the 3-year monitoring period, maintenance is proposed to occur on 
a twice-monthly (2x/mth) basis for the first year (24 events) and monthly for the remaining two 
years (24 events).  After that, maintenance will be on an as needed basis in perpetuity to maintain 
less than 5% total coverage of exotic or nuisance species. 
 
REPORTING 
 
An annual letter report will be filed with the SJRWMD within 60 days of the end of each year’s 
monitoring event.  The letter report will detail the status of the wetland enhancement/wetland 
creation area and its quantitative observations, the maintenance/management events that have 
occurred, any incidental wildlife sightings, and photographs of the wetland/upland preservation 
and wetland creation areas.   
 
Success Criteria 
 
The intent of this project is to provide the SJRWMD with quantitative results of the wetland 
enhancement/wetland creation area.  Perpetual maintenance will be performed on a regular basis 
as detailed previously in order to ensure the integrity and viability of both the preservation and 
creation areas.  As part of the activities that are designed to achieve the functional gains 
indicated in the UMAM Analysis, the success criteria for the wetland enhancement/wetland 
creation area will consist of the following: 
 
 Wetland Creation Area (WC-1) 
  

• Greater than 85 percent coverage by desirable species after 3 years; and, 
• Less than 5 percent areal coverage by invasive and/or exotic species. 

 
The wetland preservation area will be monitored on a bi-annual basis so that nuisance and exotic 
species, per the 2011 FLEPPC list, do not exceed 5% areal coverage in the wetland. Maintenance 
will be implemented on a quarterly basis with the goal of the event being the elimination the exotic 
component (i.e., 0% after event). Additionally, these areas will be placed under a conservation 
easement dedicated to the District. 
  



Tim Wetzel – SJRWMD 
Serenoa Phase 1 (BTC File #588-12) 
Baseline Monitoring Report (May 2018) 
Page 4 of 6 

 

RESULTS 
 
Baseline Monitoring Results – Serenoa Phase 1 
 
Blake Labreche of BTC performed the baseline monitoring event for the mitigation areas on May 
31, 2018.  Photographs of the mitigation areas are attached (see Appendix A).   
 
Vegetative species identified within the wetland vegetative community contains various tree 
species along with numerous understory and herbaceous species. The vegetation within these 
forested systems include red maple (Acer rubrum), pond pine (Pinus serotina), sweetbay 
(Magnolia Virginia), laurel oak (Quercus laurifolia), loblolly bay (Gordonia lasianthus), water 
oak (Quercus nigra), cabbage palm (Sabal palmetto), swamp tupelo (Nyssa sylvatica), royal fern 
Osmunda regalis), poison ivy (Toxicodendron radicans), wild azalea (Rhododendron viscosum), 
coinwort (Centella asiatica), pennywort (Hydrocotle umbellata), maidencane (Panicum 
hemitomon), spike rush (Eleocharis baldwinii), soft rush (Juncus effusus), Juncus spp., sedges 
(Carex sp. and Cyperus spp.), Digitaria spp., broomsedge (Andropogon virginicus), beakrush 
(Rhynchospora spp.), primrose willow (Ludwigia octavalvis), cattail (Typha spp.), pickerelweed 
(Pontedaria cordata), duck potato (Saggitaria lancifolia) and umbrella grass (Fuirena 
squarrosa), and wild elderberry (Sambucus Canadensis. Coverage of desirable native species 
was approximately 85% during the baseline monitoring event. 
 
Category I and II exotic species identified includes Peruvian primrosewillow (Ludwigia 
peruviana), caesarweed (Urena lobata) and tropical soda apple (Solanum viarum).  Coverage of 
the exotics was approximately 3% with Peruvian primrosewillow, caesarweed, and tropical soda 
apple occurring scattered through-out the wetland and upland preservation areas.  Nuisance plant 
species consist of only bahiagrass (Paspalum notatum) located within the upland at 
approximately 2% areal coverage.   
 
WILDLIFE UTILIZATION 
 
The Serenoa Phase 1 site was evaluated to determine the wildlife species currently utilizing the 
area.  The following is a list of those species present during the monitoring event and includes 
any direct and indirect (i.e.  tracks, burrows, vocalizations, etc.) observations made.   
 

Reptiles and Amphibians 
black racer (Coluber constrictor) 
brown anole (Norops sagrei) 
common cooter (Pseudemys floridana) 
southern leopard frog (Rana utricularia) 
 

  Birds 



Tim Wetzel – SJRWMD 
Serenoa Phase 1 (BTC File #588-12) 
Baseline Monitoring Report (May 2018) 
Page 5 of 6 

 

Black-bellied whistling duck (Dendrocygna autumnalis) 
Cattle Egret (Bubulus ibis) 
Common Grackle (Quiscalus quiscula) 
Double-crested Cormorant (Phalacrocorax auritus) 
Florida Sandhill Crane (Antigone canadensis pratensis) 
Great Blue Heron (Ardea herodias) 
Little Blue Heron (Egretta caerulea) 
Mallard (Anas platyrhynchos) 
Northern Mockingbird (Mimus polyglottos) 
Red-shouldered Hawk (Buteo lineatus) 
Roseate Spoonbill (Ajaia ajaja) 
Tricolored Heron (Egretta tricolor) 
Turkey Vulture (Cathartes aura) 
White Ibis (Eudocimus albus) 
 
Mammals 

  eastern gray squirrel (Sciurus carolinensis) 
nine-banded armadillo (Dasypus novemcinctus) 
coyote (Canis latrans) 
raccoon (Procyon lotor) 
Virginia opossum (Didelphis virginiana) 
white-tailed deer (Odocoileus virginianus) 

 
 
 
 
SUMMARY 
 
The Serenoa Phase 1 wetland preservation areas were monitored on May 31, 2018, for the 
baseline monitoring event.  Coverage of desirable native species was approximately 95% within 
the wetland preservation area and 95% within the upland preservation area during the baseline 
monitoring event.  Category I and II exotic species identified includes Peruvian primrosewillow 
(Ludwigia peruviana), caesarweed (Urena lobata) and tropical soda apple (Solanum viarum). 
Coverage of the exotics was approximately 3% with Peruvian primrosewillow, caesarweed, and 
tropical soda apple occurring scattered through-out the wetland and upland preservation areas.  
Nuisance plant species consist of only bahiagrass (Paspalum notatum) located within the upland 
at approximately 2% areal coverage.  Maintenance events have not yet started but will be 
performed on a monthly basis for the first year and then quarterly for years two thru five.  Water 
levels within the wetland and upland preservation areas ranged from moist to 12 inches.  These 
water levels and conditions were consistent with historic norms and seasonal variations for this 



Tim Wetzel – SJRWMD 
Serenoa Phase 1 (BTC File #588-12) 
Baseline Monitoring Report (May 2018) 
Page 6 of 6 

 

time of year; and recent and longer term weather patterns for this area of Central Florida.  
Monitoring events will be performed bi-annually in January and July for five (5) years with 
reports to follow or until SJRWMD sign off on the monitoring for the project. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 

 
 
Blake Labreche      Danny Gough 
Field Biologist      Project Manager 

 
Attachments 
 



Project #: 588-03
Produced By: BMM
Date: 10/20/2016

1.5
Miles

²2002 E. Robinson St.  Orlando, FL  32803
Ph:  407-894-5969  Fax:  407-894-5970 
www.bio-techconsulting.com

Serenoa Phase 1A
Lake County, Florida

Figure 1
Location Map

Legend
Serenoa Phase 1A

Sources: Esri, HERE, DeLorme, USGS, Intermap, increment P Corp., NRCAN, Esri Japan, METI, Esri
China (Hong Kong), Esri (Thailand), TomTom, MapmyIndia, © OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS
User Community



Project #: 588-03
Produced By: BMM
Date: 10/20/2016

720
Feet

²2002 E. Robinson St.  Orlando, FL  32803
Ph:  407-894-5969  Fax:  407-894-5970 
www.bio-techconsulting.com

Serenoa Phase 1A
Lake County, Florida

Figure 2
2015 Aerial Photograph

Legend
Serenoa Phase 1A



Project #: 588-03
Produced By: MEC
Date: 3/13/2017

850
Feet²2002 E. Robinson St.  Orlando, FL  32803

Ph:  407-894-5969  Fax:  407-894-5970 
www.bio-techconsulting.com

Legend
Serenoa Phase 1A

Legend
Serenoa Phase 1A

Avalon Groves Site

Serenoa Phase 1A
Lake County, Florida

Conservation Location Map

Legend
                    Conservation Easement



Serenoa Phase 1 – Wetland Preservation Photo station 1 – May 2018 

Serenoa Phase 1 – Wetland Preservation Photo station 1 – May 2018 



Serenoa Phase 1 – Wetland Preservation Photo station 1 – May 2018 

Serenoa Phase 1 – Wetland Preservation Photo station 1 – May 2018 



Serenoa Phase 1 – Wetland Preservation Photo station 2 – May 2018 

Serenoa Phase 1 – Wetland Preservation Photo station 2 – May 2018 



Serenoa Phase 1 – Wetland Preservation Photo station 2 – May 2018 

Serenoa Phase 1 – Wetland Preservation Photo station 2 – May 2018 



Serenoa Phase 1 – Wetland Preservation Photo station 3 – May 2018 

Serenoa Phase 1 – Wetland Preservation Photo station 3 – May 2018 



Serenoa Phase 1 – Wetland Preservation Photo station 3 – May 2018 

Serenoa Phase 1 – Wetland Preservation Photo station 3 – May 2018 



Serenoa Phase 1 – Wetland Preservation Photo station 4 – May 2018 

Serenoa Phase 1 – Wetland Preservation Photo station 4 – May 2018 



Serenoa Phase 1 – Wetland Preservation Photo station 4 – May 2018 

Serenoa Phase 1 – Wetland Preservation Photo station 4 – May 2018 



Serenoa Phase 1 – Wetland Preservation Photo station 5 – May 2018 

Serenoa Phase 1 – Wetland Preservation Photo station 5 – May 2018 



Serenoa Phase 1 – Wetland Preservation Photo station 5 – May 2018 

Serenoa Phase 1 – Wetland Preservation Photo station 5 – May 2018 



Serenoa Phase 1 – Wetland Preservation Photo station 6 – May 2018 

Serenoa Phase 1 – Wetland Preservation Photo station 6 – May 2018 



Serenoa Phase 1 – Wetland Preservation Photo station 6 – May 2018 

Serenoa Phase 1 – Wetland Preservation Photo station 6 – May 2018 



Serenoa Phase 1 – Wetland Preservation Photo station 7 – May 2018 

Serenoa Phase 1 – Wetland Preservation Photo station 7 – May 2018 



Serenoa Phase 1 – Wetland Preservation Photo station 7 – May 2018 

Serenoa Phase 1 – Wetland Preservation Photo station 7 – May 2018 


	cover & letter
	August 27, 2018 Meeting Agenda
	EXHIBIT 1
	Exhibit 1a AG 05-24-18 Meeting Minutes
	EXHIBIT 2
	Exhibit 2a Unaudited Financial Avalon Groves - Jul 2018
	Avalon Groves - Jul 2018
	Avalon Groves - Jul 20181
	Avalon Groves - Jul 20182

	EXHIBIT 3
	Exhibit 3a AG Resolution-XX FY 2019 Meeting Schedule
	RESOLUTION 2018-06
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF AVALON GROVESCOMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT THAT:
	PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 27th DAY OF AUGUST, 2018.

	Exhibit 3b AG 2019 Meeting Schedule
	EXHIBIT 4
	Exhibit 4a DOCS-#543373-v1-Resolution_Resetting_Budget_Hearing_-_Avalon_Groves
	EXHIBIT 5
	Exhibit 5a Avalon groves FY 2019 Proposed budget
	general fund
	STMT2 OM alloc
	contract summary
	Area 1 Budget
	Area 1 DS
	Area 2 A1 Budget
	Area 2 A1
	Area 2 A2 Budget
	Area 2 A2

	EXHIBIT 6
	Exhibit 6a DOCS-#539888-v1-FY_2019_Appropriation_Resolution_-_Avalon_Groves
	Exhibit 6B Avalon groves FY 2019 Proposed budget - Copy
	general fund
	STMT2 OM alloc
	contract summary
	Area 1 Budget
	Area 1 DS
	Area 2 A1 Budget
	Area 2 A1
	Area 2 A2 Budget
	Area 2 A2

	Exhibit 6c DOCS-#542434-v1-FY_2019_Deficit_Funding_Agreement_-_Avalon_Groves
	EXHIBIT 7
	Exhibit 7a  DOCS-#542437-v1-FY_2019_Assessment_Resolution_-_Avalon_Groves
	Exhibit 7B Avalon groves FY 2019 Proposed budget - Copy
	general fund
	STMT2 OM alloc
	contract summary
	Area 1 Budget
	Area 1 DS
	Area 2 A1 Budget
	Area 2 A1
	Area 2 A2 Budget
	Area 2 A2

	Exhibit 7c Avalon Groves FY 19 Assessment Roll
	EXHIBIT 8
	Exhibit 8B Estimate_EST10041_1528725876431
	EXHIBIT 9
	Exhibit 9 Ratification of Hog proposal DOC081518-08152018110028
	EXHIBIT 10
	Exhibit 10A Ratification of maintenance
	Exhibit 10B 20180817 - EXH-CDD-POND MAINT_ARCH-D-PORTRAIT
	EXHIBIT 11
	EXHIBIT 12
	Exhibit 12a Ratification of termination of Landscape
	EXHIBIT 13
	Exhibit 13A Ratification 17-224 Serenoa Roadway M&M executed
	Exhibit 13B Avalon Groves Roadway Baseline Monitoring Report
	EXHIBIT 14
	Exhibit 14A 17-234 Serenoa Phase 1A M&M executed
	Exhibit14B serenoa phase 1A Baseline Monitoring Report



